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That All May Be One
In Love And Service

The GMA Kapuso Foundation Prayer

Loving God, fount of goodness and compassion,

We humbly come before You to offer our praise and thanks,

for all the blessings that You have bestowed upon us.

We thank You, most especially, for calling us to be men and women
of service, sending us to others, as salt and light, to flavour life

with hope and joy.

We pray that You renew us in Your love and likeness,

So that peace may always reign in our hearts.

Be our strength, please continue to energize and rejuvenate our souls.

Bless and guide us, Your people at GMA Kapuso Foundation,

grow in our hearts and make us instruments of Your love.

Teach us the best way to share Your love to the least of our brothers and sisters.
We lift up to You, our Merciful Father, the most special of Your children;

the poor and the needy, the broken and the homeless, the young,

the aged, the sick and the lonely.

Heal their bodies, heal their hearts, and heal their souls.

Lead them to Your loving embrace - to find love and refuge.

We also entrust to Your utmost care our generous donors and partners,
the companies, individuals, groups and organizations who

ceaselessly journey with us in serving others the Kapusong Totoo

way, keep them in Your presence, and bring joy and peace

to their generous hearts.

And as we continue to respond to the call of delivering Serbisyong
Totoo, grant our Parent-Benefactor, GMA Network, Inc.,
Your choicest blessings.

Bless its leaders and personnel with Your strength and inspiration,
So they may carry on supporting the work of the Foundation

and fulfill their mission to communicate Your love and graciousness,
all for Your glory and in the service of Your people.

AMEN



We uplift the lives of underprivileged Filipinos all over the Philippines by:

* providing quick-response relief operations to
fulfill the most immediate needs in times of crises;

E L g » undertaking health, nutrition and medical projects
' to promote greater equity in health;
* carrying out developmental programs designed
to promote education and foster learning.

We value our relationship with local, national, and
international partners and recognize the impact they have
in our capability to provide help to those who need it most.

We are committed in ensuring sustainable operations to
enable us to continue being a “strong bridge” for our
donors and beneficiaries by actively promoting the
Foundation’s initiative to solicit sufficient funding.

c-la ot dalawam
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In doing so, we effectively bridge the distance that
comes between those who need help and those who
extend a helping hand. As such, we recognize the
power of media and its role in eliciting compassion
and a sense of responsibility from our donors and in
promoting volunteerism among Filipinos, and shall
continue to use it responsibly as a means to achieve
our organizational goals.
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We are the most accomplished, most trusted
and most credible non-government
organization in the Philippines; the leader

in serving and uplifting the lives of the
underprivileged members of our society
through Serbisyong Totoo and

the responsible use of media.
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As we forge ahead in the years to
come, GMA Kapuso Foundation will
continue to be good stewards - always
looking for ways to deepen our impact
and remaining steadfast to the spirit

of Serbisyong Totoo.
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Situated along the typhoon belt and the Pacific Ring of Fire, the
Philippines is vulnerable to tropical cyclones, volcanic eruptions,
and earthquakes. As a matter of fact, it is one of the most disaster-
prone countries in the world, ranking first among 193 countries on
the World Risk Index 2022.

But what'’s alarming is how these natural disasters are intensifying in
strength and occurring more frequently, causing massive damage.
Days and even months after Super Typhoon Odette slammed into
our shores, communities were still struggling — power grids were
down, houses flattened, and schools were barely standing.

Recognizing the need to bring communities back to their feetand in
better shape than pre-typhoon conditions, GMA Kapuso Foundation
focused its efforts on the long-term needs of our underprivileged
country men. In 2022, we worked on projects with lasting impact
such as building structures that can withstand the forces of nature
while supporting the needs of communities. We knew that for every
disaster-resilient classroom we build, we are also building hope.
With one steel bridge, we are unlocking economic opportunity and
dramatically improving lives.

You will see details of the beneficiaries and donations in this report,
but the people behind these numbers are the real story of “Bunga Ng
Bayanihan”- students walking safely to school, families with easier access
to healthcare, our hardworking staff who travel to remote areas during
natural calamities, and our partners who have given us enduring and
generous support. | am so grateful to all of you.

As we forge ahead in the years to come, GMA Kapuso Foundation will
continue to be good stewards — always looking for ways to deepen our
impact and remaining steadfast to the spirit of Serbisyong Totoo.

Nawa ay patuloy tayong pagpalain ng Panginoon. Mabuhay kayong lahat,
mga Kapuso!

Aot

ATTY. FELIPE L. GOZON
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It was a fruitful year for the GMA
Kapuso Foundation as we served
359,570 Filipinos through our four
core programs in disaster relief,
education, values formation,

and health.
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It was a fruitful year for the GMA Kapuso Foundation as we
served 359,570 Filipinos through our four core programs in
disaster relief, education, values formation, and health.

Much of the Foundation’s work in 2022 was devoted to helping
communities hardest hit by Super Typhoon Odette. Among
our noteworthy accomplishments was our disaster relief
program bannered Operation Bayanihan. Through this project,
we extended immediate assistance by providing relief goods,
critical supplies, and roofing materials; benefitting 236,128
individuals in disaster-stricken areas throughout the country.

Apart from Operation Bayanihan, the Foundation continued
with its sustainable infrastructure projects. Through the
Kapuso School Development project, we built 11 calamity-
resilient classrooms in the course of the year. Designed and
built to withstand high-velocity wind and earthquakes, the
classrooms are also fitted with bathrooms, handwashing
facilities, and access to clean drinking water to ensure that
proper hygiene is maintained by the students. These new
learning spaces benefited three public elementary schools:
the Magallanes Elementary School in Limasawa Island and
New Malangza Elementary School in Liloan, both located in
Southern Leyte, and Baybay Elementary School in Burgos,

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
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Siargao Island of Surigao del Norte. Together with our partners, we also
built our seventh Kapuso Tulay Para Sa Kaunlaran. A 70-meter-long steel and
concrete hanging bridge in Barangay San Juan, Sogod, Southern Leyte, it is
also the first Kapuso bridge in the Visayas. Inaugurated on December 10, 2022,
or a year after Odette pummeled the town, the bridge serves as a safe and
efficient passageway connecting communities to essential healthcare facilities
and livelihood opportunities.

We continued to pursue our pillar projects across the archipelago in the past
year: 60,000 kindergarten and Grade 1 pupils received backpacks complete
with school supplies through Unang Hakbang sa Kinabukasan; another 60,000
children received gift bags containing food and toys through the Give-A-Gift
project; while thousands of our countrymen received medical assistance
through the Kalusugan Karavan. We also conducted Sagip Dugtong Buhay
where 1,836 blood bags were collected from soldiers, cadets, and residents.

Through this Annual Report with the theme “Bunga ng Bayanihan’, you will
see how we all, working together, continued to fulfill our promise to uplift the
lives of Filipinos.

The aftermath of Super Typhoon Odette and several typhoons, flash floods and
landslides in Benguet province, volcanic eruptions, and earthquakes remind
us not only of the vulnerability of communities to disaster but also about the
fundamental goodness and generosity of people. Amidst all the devastation
that follows the disasters we experienced, the countless acts of kindness and
empathy from our valued donors, partners, and volunteers shone the brightest.

On behalf of my fellow Trustees and the Foundation’s staff, we thank you for
your undying trust and confidence in our shared mission.

GILBERTO R. DUAVI



We made it through 2022 with
perseverance and resilience, gradually
emerging from the difficult depths of the

pandemic in the two years before.
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PERSEVERANCE AND RESILIENCE

We made it through 2022 with perseverance and resilience,
gradually emerging from the difficult depths of the pandemic
in the two years before.

Much of the perseverance comes from the steadfast trust
and support from GMA Network, our project partners and
institutional donors, and the general public. Thank you from
the bottom of our hearts, on behalf of the Filipino people
we serve.

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
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The resilience comes from the values, principles, and systems upon which
the GMA Kapuso Foundation is built. We looked after the health of our
staff, prudently managed our available resources, implemented austerity
measures, and suspended some activities that posed COVID risks.

Fortunately, the beginnings of the economic recovery in 2022 toward
the new normal are replenishing our resources and enabling us to move
more freely. We are shaking off some of the donor fatigue we experienced
in 2020 and 2021. All these make us hopeful about our prospects and
ongoing programs in the coming years.

We remain open to new linkages with like-hearted organizations. More
collaboration with foreign embassies and international aid institutions
are among the bright spots to explore.

The pandemic and calamities tested our resolve. We have proven to be

more than equal to the challenges. We are resolute in our goal to continue
forging ahead, fixed on our mission of Serbisyong Totoo.

—
A‘ o

CARMELA C. TIANGCO
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of Filipinos here and abroad, as well as
that of Filipino companies and even
foreign embassies, we managed to
build 11 classrooms and a sturdy steel
and concrete hanging bridge according
to our exacting Kapuso standards.
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It was a year of renewal. After 2 long years of strict anti-COVID
protocols — the number of infections were dropping — and life as
we knew it before COVID was returning to the way it was. With
the lifting of travel restrictions, GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
was able to implement developmental infrastructure projects,
planned at the start of the year, funded by public donations that
poured in for victims of Super Typhoon Odette (which struck in
December, 2021) in the Visayas and Mindanao.

With God’s grace and the
generosity of Filipinos here
and abroad, as well as that of
Filipino companies and even
foreign embassies, we managed
to build 11 classrooms and
a sturdy steel and concrete
hanging bridge according to
our exacting Kapuso standards.
Our kababayans deserve the
best we could construct, and
we owed it to our donors and
sponsors to build these strong
enough for future generations of Filipinos. Amidst our construction
projects, GMAKF also responded to the needs of calamity victims all
over the country as it was a year that saw a lot of typhoons, flooding,
landslides, an earthquake and even volcanic eruptions. We could not
have managed our relief operations without the help of valuable service
partners in the Armed Forces, in private enterprises and individuals who
trusted GMAKF with their hard-earned donations, believing that through
GMAKF, makakarating ang tulong na binigay nila. Such faith encourages
the staff and officers of GMAKF to strive even harder, to reach remote,
poverty-stricken areas we have never reached before, to give sincere and
swift public service, powered and supported by the good will, generosity
and trust of millions of Filipinos and others wanting to help. Thank you for
¥ g ) your trust and continued support and patronage. As we look forward to
: e : better times ahead, we remain committed to render SERBISYONG TOTOO.
Tris Rambutan Fruf Tre (Nephelum appaceurn) ws Please be comforted by our assurance that in the event of unpredictable
planted by MS. RIKKI ESCUDERO-CATIBOG ! . o 3
GMAKF EVP & COO : and unavoidable calamities, you have our solemn promise that GMA
On August 24, 2022 ; KAPUSO FOUNDATION will do its best to give necessary aid, for God, for
. 5 - BEas o good, for our fellow marginalized Filipinos. May God bless us and shield
S 5 us all.
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THE YEAR AT A

GLANCE : 2022

GMA Kapuso Foundation served a total of 359,570 individuals in 2022,  KF Served:
a year tarnished by the aftermath of Super Typhoon Odette and several 236,128 individuals through its Disaster Relief program,
other typhoons, flash floods, landslides, volcanic eruptions 60,000 individuals through its Education program,
and earthquakes. 61,749 individuals through its various Values Formation
projects and,
1,693 individuals through its different Health projects.

individuals
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Operation Bayanihan

75,120 Typhoon Odette survivors were
given relief goods in San Jose, Southern
Leyte, Limasawa Island, Sipalay City,
Negros Occidental, Cebu, Bohol, Toledo
City, Cebu, Bais, Negros Oriental, Lapu-
Lapu City and Olango Island in Cebu,
Siargao Island in Surigao Del Norte.

2,396 landslide/mudslide survivors were
given relief goods in Banaue, Ifugao.

T 70

Give-A-Gift: Surgical Project

24 patients with imperforate anuses
and Hirschsprung’s disease confined
at Our Lady of Peace Hospital in
Paranaque were successfully operated
on by KF partner, the World Surgical
Foundation Philippines.

Kapuso Cancer Champions

5 children afflicted with cancer
under the care of GMA Kapuso
Foundation continued to receive
free chemotherapy medicine and
blood bags in partnership with the
Philippine Red Cross.

Kapuso Kalusugan Konsulta

28 patients of public hospitals who
were stricken with different kinds of
diseases were served. They received
maintenance medicine, laboratory
services and O.R. supplies from KF
partner pharmacies.

Subject of Appeal Cases

13 individuals with rare and
complicated diseases were
accommodated, 5 of whom were
successfully treated while the
rest are undergoing continuous
treatment and medication.
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*1,836 blood bags excluded in the March monthly total count.

Operation Bayanihan
3,068 Taal volcanic eruption survivors in
Batangas province were given relief goods.

Operation Bayanihan: Silong Kapuso
1,200 Typhoon Odette survivors in Bohol,
Quezon and Southern Leyte were given
roofing materials.

Sagip Dugtong Buhay

1,836 blood bags (450 cc) were collected
from blood donors (soldiers, cadets and
residents) in NCR, Cavite, Tarlac and Baguio
City. These blood donors are residents from
BF Homes in Las Pinas, the valiant soldiers
of the Philippine Army, TRADOC (Training
and Doctrine Command) in Tarlac, SAVER
Comm (Social Action Volunteer Emergency
Radio Communications Inc.), the Philippine
Navy, Naval Air Wing, Philippine Fleet, and
the cadets, officers and employees of the
Philippine Military Academy.

Women'’s Health Month
320 women from Antipolo City, Pangasinan,
Benguet and Cavite were given free PAP
smears and breast examinations, cervical
cancer screening, reproductive healthcare
and breast self-examination lectures.

25,600

Operation Bayanihan

25,600 Typhoon Agaton survivors in Agusan
Del Sur, Leyte, lloilo, and Capiz were given
relief goods.




230

Mother’s Day

100 women from Cavite were given free PAP smears, breast
examinations, grocery packs, hygiene kits, slippers and
surgical masks. They also participated in a cervical cancer
prevention and awareness lecture presented by KF’s partner
OB gynaecologists.

Hypertension Awareness Month

100 charcoal makers from Catmon, Malabon were given
free ECG, lipid profile, and fasting blood sugar tests, grocery
packs, meals and hygiene kits.

Operation Tuli
30 boys underwent free circumcision at the Jose Reyes
Memorial Medical Center in Manila.

IR 66,804

Prostate Cancer Awareness Month and Father’s Day
100 men consisting of fishermen from Bulacan and rope
makers from Valenzuela were given free prostate specific
antigen (PSA), and urinalysis tests, grocery packs, hygiene
kits, pants, caps and life vests. They also participated in a
lecture conducted by partner doctors.

Operation Bayanihan
2,704 fire victims in Cebu City were given relief goods.

4,000 Mount Bulusan volcanic eruption survivors in Juban,
Sorsogon were given relief goods.

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDA 1 7
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Unang Hakbang Sa Kinabukasan Project
60,000 incoming Kinder and Grade 1
pupils from different provinces nationwide
(Limasawa Island, Leyte, Sulu, Tawi-Tawi,
Western Samar, Southern Leyte, Lanao del
Norte, Bukidnon, Eastern Samar, Surigao del
Sur, Agusan del Norte, lloilo, Capiz, Bohol,
Negros Oriental, Surigao del Norte, Agusan
del Sur, Sarangani, Dinagat Island, Cebu,
Romblon, North Cotabato, Davao Oriental,
Davao Occidental, Sultan Kudarat and
Maguindanao) were given Kapuso school
bags with complete sets of school supplies.




National Disability Prevention and Rehabilitation Week

30 beneficiaries nationwide received arm and hand prostheses

from KF partners LN4 Foundation and Naked Wolves Philippines.

50 physically impaired individuals in Amlan, Jimalalud,
Bayawan, Leyte and Sibulan in Negros Oriental received new
wheelchairs (adult and pediatric) and strollers. They also
received assorted goods, vitamin supplements and meals.

Operation Bayanihan
11,550 earthquake survivors from Abra received relief goods.

Kalusugan Karavan

distributed assorted medicine, antibiotics, supplements, antacids,
first aid kits, alcohol, antigen kits and anti-HPN to 21 Rural Health
Units in Ifugao, Laguna, Abra, Cabanatuan City, Leyte, Cagayan,
Sultan Kudarat, Rizal, Quezon, Baguio City, Pampanga, Sorsogon,
Camarines Sur, Capiz and Mountain Province.

Kapuso Para Sa Kawal

7,088 soldiers nationwide who worked side-by-side with
GMAKEF in Operation Bayanihan, were themselves calamity
victims and their units were given roofing sheets, ridge rolls,
nails, rubber mats, hard hats, shovels, face masks, first aid kits,
coffee, bottled water and vitamin supplements.

IS 34,960

Operation Bayanihan
6,500 Typhoon Florita victims in Isabela and Cagayan received
relief goods.

26,400 earthquake survivors in Abra benefitted from the
installation of drinking water stations by KF partner, Planet
Water Foundation.

Kapuso Ng Kalikasan
1,720 individuals benefited from tree planting activities in
Southern Leyte and Surigao del Norte.

Sight Saving Month

148 students of North Bay Boulevard in Navotas, Manila were given free reading
and corrective eyeglasses. They also received freebies and assorted items and
participated in a lecture on how to take care of the eyes and their new eyeglasses.

50 beneficiaries underwent free diabetic retinopathy screening at the Dr. J. Paulino
Garcia Memorial Research and Medical Center in Cabanatuan, Nueva Ecija to
detect if their blurry vision is caused by diabetes.

Kapuso School Development

142 currently enrolled students and future generations of students will benefit
from the construction of 4 classrooms at the Magallanes Elementary School in
Limasawa, Southern Leyte.
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Operation Bayanihan
29,420 victims of Typhoon Karding in Aurora and Bulacan were
given relief goods.

Operation Bayanihan: Soup Kitchen
750 individuals in Obando, Bulacan and Bagong Silangan,
Quezon City were served hot meals.

Kapuso School Development
73 students benefitted from the construction of 3 classrooms at
the New Malangza Elementary School in Liloan, Southern Leyte.




OCTOBER

Linis Lusog Kapuso ng Kabataan

512 Kindergarten to Grade 6 pupils and their families from
Tagkawayan, Quezon received hygiene kits and fluoride
varnish application. They also participated in handwashing and
toothbrushing drills in line with Global Handwashing Week.

200 children from Tanay, Rizal who were affected by a diarrhea
outbreak were fed by the Kapuso Soup Kitchen and received
hygiene kits, assorted grocery items and vitamin supplements.

Operation Bayanihan

1,050 victims of a diarrhea outbreak in Tanay, Rizal including
members of the Dumagat indigenous tribe received relief
goods.

30,100 survivors of Super Typhoon Paeng were given relief
goods in Camarines Sur, Cavite, Bulacan, Cavite, Maguindanao
and Antique.

I 60,012

Give-A-Gift: Distribution of Noche Buena Packs
60,000 children nationwide (Sulu, Basilan, Saranggani,
Tawi-Tawi, Eastern Samar, Camarines Sur, Western Samar,
Negros Oriental, North Cotabato, Surigao, Cebu, Bohol,
Sorsogon, Sultan Kudarat, Southern Leyte, Aurora, Mt.
Province, Negros Occidental, Quezon, Abra, Isabela, South
Cotabato, Cagayan, Nueva Ecija) received Give-A-Gift bags
containing Noche Buena/grocery packs and toys.

Children’s Month

12 strollers were given to infant and toddler beneficiaries
who have cerebral palsy, seizure disorders, TB meningitis
and mental disabilities in Juban, Sorsogon.

&
d
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Operation Bayanihan
8,000 flood victims of the shear line phenomenon in Oroquieta City and
Clarin in Misamis Occidental received relief goods.

Kapuso Tulay Para Sa Kaunlaran
824 individuals benefitted from the construction of a 70-meter long
steel and concrete hanging bridge in Sogod, Southern Leyte.

Kapuso School Development
143 students benefitted from the construction of 4 classrooms at the
Baybay Elementary School in Burgos, Siargao Island, Surigao Del Norte.

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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COVER STORY
Bunga ng Bayanihan:
GMAKF'S Post-Super Typhoon Odette Projects

The strongest typhoon to hit the earth in 2021 happened a week before Christmas, and the first few months of 2022 was spent by those affected
by Super Typhoon Odette trying to get back to normal amidst the extensive destruction around them. GMA Kapuso Foundation worked straight
through the New Year holidays to give much-needed aid to affected kababayans in the Visayas (Bohol, Cebu, Negros Oriental and Occidental,
Southern Leyte) and Mindanao (Siargao, Surigao). Over 75,000 beneficiaries in 6 provinces were given relief goods. GMAKF worked hand in hand
with the AFP’s Army, Navy and Airforce, to distribute the aid in hard-to-reach and damaged municipalities.

Siargao, Surigao del Norte




Operation Bayanihan: Odette 2022
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SOUTHERN LEYTE

DATE MUNICIPALITY BARANGAY NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
January 2, 2022 San Jose Brgy. Matingbe 350 1,400
Brgy. Jacquiz 307 1,228
Brgy. Magallanes 561 2,244
Brgy. Lugsongan 342 1,368
Brgy. Cabulihan 255 1,020
Limasawa Island Brgy. Triana 390 1,560
January 4, 2022 Brgy. San Bernardo 168 672
Brgy. San Agustin 184 736
Brgy. Pinut-an 540 2,160
San Ricardo Brgy. Looc 123 492
Brgy. Kinachawa 164 656
e TOTAL SERVED 3,384 families 13,536 individuals
&) Water KAPuso FOUNDATION, Ix (.
AquaBlock OD “0
EMERGENCY WATER KIOSK N B




O-peration Bayanihan: Odette 2022

. CEBU
DATE MUNICIPALITY BARANGAY NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
January 11, 2022 San Fernando San Fernando Central 200 800
School
(Soup Kitchen)
January 13, 2022 Consolacion Brgy. Nangka 600 2,400
(Soup Kitchen)
January 14, 2022 Sibonga Brgy. Banlot 360 1,440
(Soup Kitchen)
January 17, 2022 Barili Brgy. Sta. Ana 780 3,120
(Soup Kitchen)
Brgy. Olango 404 1,616
January 18, 2022 Aloguinsan (Soup Kitchen)
Brgy. Esperanza 356 1,424
January 19, 2022 Bantayan Island Bantayan Island 749 2,996
Brgy. San Vicente 550 2,200
Lapu-Lapu City Brgy. Caw-oy 475 1,900
January 25-27, 2022 (Olango Island) Brgy. Baring 510 2,040
Brgy. Sabang 465 1,860
February 2, 2022 Toledo City Brgy. Sangi 115 460
TOTAL SERVED 5,564 families 22,256 individuals
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NEGROS OCCIDENTAL

DATE MUNICIPALITY BARANGAY NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
January 4, 2022 Brgy. Mambaroto 120 480
January 5, 2022 Brgy. Gil Montilla 500 2,000
Brgy. 3 125 500
Sipalay City Brgy. Manlucahoc 580 2,320
January 6, 2022 Brgy. Camindangan 295 1,180

TOTAL SERVED

1,620 families

6,480 individuals




BOHOL

MUNICIPALITY BARANGAY NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
January 22, 2022 Getafe Brgy. San Jose 510 2,040
Brgy. Campo Occidental 140 560
January 23, 2022 Trinidad Brgy. La Victoria 476 1,904
Brgy. Soom 224 896
Brgy. Concepcion 350 1,400
Brgy. Marcelo 101 404
January 24, 2022 Mabini Brgy. Tambo 84 336
Brgy. Abad Santos 50 200
Brgy. Minol 78 312
Brgy. Valaga 37 148
Brgy. Canhaway 180 720
January 25, 2022 Guindulman Brgy. Tabajan 270 1,080
Brgy. Sawang 227 908

TOTAL SERVED

2,727 families

10,908 individuals
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NEGROS ORIENTAL

DATE MUNICIPALITY BARANGAY NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
January 24, 2022 Brgy. Cabanlutan 390 1,560
Brgy. Mabunao 221 884
January 25, 2022 Bais Brgy. Panala-an 572 2,288
Brgy. Panala-an Proper 830 3,320
January 26, 2022 Brgy. Dansulan 379 1,516
Brgy. Cabanjao 335 1,340

TOTAL SERVED

2,727 families

10,908 individuals
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Operation Bayanihan: Odette 2022

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATIO

SIARGAO ISLAND, SURIGAO DEL NORTE

DATE MUNICIPALITY BARANGAY NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
January 24, 2022 Burgos Brgy. Baybay 356 1,424
January 25, 2022 Brgy. Libertad 327 1,308

Sta. Monica Brgy. Garcia 139 556
General Luna Brgy. Consuelo 154 616
Pilar Brgy. Katipunan 220 880
January 26, 2022 Brgy. Jaboy 108 432
Brgy. Datu 228 912
San Isidro Brgy. Sta. Paz 222 888
Del Carmen Brgy. Mahayahay 132 528
Brgy. Lobogon 137 548
Brgy. Antipolo 55 220
San Isidro Brgy. Pelaez 113 452
Brgy. Pacifico 127 508
January 27, 2022 Brgy. San Miguel 99 396
Sta. Monica Brgy. Tangbo 120 480
Brgy. Rizal 16 64
San Benito Brgy. Talisay 78 312
Brgy. Bongdo 110 440
Dapa Brgy. Sta. Fe 17 68
2,758 families 11,032 individuals

OTAL SERVED
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Kapuso School Development

11 brand new classrooms in 3 school buildings were constructed by GMA Kapuso
Foundation in super typhoon-stricken Visayas and Mindanao in 2022.

LIMASAWA ISLAND

Limasawa Island across Leyte, the site of the first Catholic Mass on Philippine
shores, was one of the worst-hit areas of Super Typhoon Odette. The island was
incommunicado for several days after the onslaught of the typhoon. The army had
to send a reconnaissance team to check out what happened to the people living
there and what the soldiers reported made our hearts sink: Limasawa Island was
completely devastated with most of the roofing of homes blown away, all schools
sustained major damage and most of the coconut trees planted on its exposed hills
were broken and bent. After relief goods and Silong Kapuso roof distributions were
done, GMA Kapuso Foundation set about to rebuild what was to be Limasawa’s first
post-Odette earthquake and typhoon-resistant school building.

E-N
¥ watemark i




A 4-classroom school building resistant to earthquakes
up to intensity 8, and storm winds of up to 300 kph
was erected in the compound of Limasawa Island’s
Magallanes Elementary School under GMAKF's Kapuso
School Development project. After a construction period
of a little over 2 months, the completed school building
with 4 classrooms, 4 comfort rooms and a 5-faucet
handwashing station was turned over to a grateful
community on August 24, 2022. In attendance were:
GMAKF EVP and COO, Ms. Rikki Escudero-Catibog, the
Division Commander of the Philippine Army’s 8th Infantry
Division, Major General Edgardo de Leon, Limasawa
Island’s mayor, the Honorable Melchor Petracorta, the
Schools Division Superintendent of Southern Leyte,
Dr. Genis Murallos, CESO V. Also present at the turnover
were GMAKF sponsors and partners: Xylem Watermark's
Mr. Tata Putong, Concrete Stone Corp.s Mr. John Ree
Libunao and Manila Water Executive Director, Mr.
Reginald Andal.

Thank you to all our partners and sponsors
who helped us finish this worthwhile project:

Concrete Stone Corp.

Lotus Tools Philippines

Xylem and Planet Water Foundation
Sparkle GMA Artist Center

CEMEX Philippines Foundation

PPG Coatings (Philippines), Inc.
Manila Water Foundation

American Standard Philippines

Yale Philippines

Hanabishi

Meridian Shipping and Container Carrier, Inc.

We would also like to acknowledge the critical support provided
by our service partners for our Kapuso school in Limasawa:

Visayas Command, AFP

8th Infantry Division, PA

802nd Infantry Brigade, PA

14th Infantry Battalion, PA

53rd Engineer Brigade, PA

546th Engineer Construction Battalion, PA
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LILOAN, SOUTHERN LEYTE

It was like a terrible déja vu. The New Malangza Elementary School in Liloan, Southern
Leyte was first finished by GMA Kapuso Foundation back in October, 2006 as a post-
calamity intervention for victims of the Guinsaugon, Leyte landslide which happened
in February that same year, after a minor earthquake and 10 days of non-stop rain. KF
built the school in a government relocation site. Unfortunately, last December 2021,
when Super Typhoon Odette blew into Southern Leyte, New Malangza suffered a
direct hit. GMA Kapuso Foundation returned to Liloan, Southern Leyte to rebuild what
was lost - again.

A brand new, 3-classroom school building was erected on the same site of the flattened
school. The turnover of the new school was held on September 29,2022, only 3 months
after construction began. GMAKF built strong — 3 classrooms with 3 comfort rooms,
and a handwashing station. The school building made of poured concrete (no hollow
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blocks) was constructed to withstand an earthquake of
up to intensity 8, and was designed not to cave to storm
winds of up to 300 kph. Present at the inauguration rites
were: GMAKF EVP and COO, Ms. Rikki Escudero-Catibog,
the Commander of the Philippine Army’s 802nd Infantry
Brigade, BGen. Noel Vestuir, the Mayor of Liloan, Southern
Leyte, the Honorable Jonna Adan. Partners and sponsors
also graced the turnover: Concrete Stone Corp.s Mr. John
Ree Libunao, Xylem's Ms. Aileen Habulan, Planet Water
Foundation’s Mr. Dario Operario, CEMEX Philippines
Foundation Executive Director Ms. Erlinda Lizardo, Manila
Water Foundation’s Ms. lvy Jill De Leon and PPG Coatings
Philippines Inc’s Mr. Roel Martinez. To forestall any future



N 33
dangers from landslides, GMAKF likewise spearheaded the planting of 200
Narraand Mahogany tree seedlings around the school and nearby community.

MOA 5'GN'NG Medicine & vitamin supplements were also turned over by GMAKF to the
GROUNDEIRFQKING Liloan Community Hospital.

Heartfelt thanks to all the sponsors and partners of the project:

+ Concrete Stone Corp.

+ Lotus Tools Philippines

« Xylem and Planet Water Foundation
« CEMEX Philippines Foundation

+ Applied Medical

« PPG Coatings (Philippines), Inc.
 Manila Water Foundation

+ Meridian Shipping and Container Carrier, Inc.
+ Austrian Embassy Manila

« Mariwasa Siam Ceramics, Inc.

« American Standard Philippines

+ Yale Philippines

- Hanabishi

. s | We also extend our gratitude to our service partners
—— @MA | I\Qf?. CEE in Liloan, Leyte:

Concrete Stone Corp.

. KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC. .
« Armed Forces of the Philippines
» Visayas Command, AFP

« 8th Infantry Division, PA

+ 802nd Infantry Brigade, PA
«+ 14th Infantry Battalion, PA
53rd Engineer Brigade, PA



SIARGAO, SURIGAO DEL NORTE

Super Typhoon Odette made one of its landfalls on the picturesque surfing island
of Siargao and left it in shambles. So many homes, resorts and schools were
destroyed in what has been described as the worst typhoon to ever hit the island
in recent history. The coastal town of Burgos was pummeled and its elementary
school in Baybay, destroyed. GMAKF undertook rebuilding efforts in August of
2022 and after 3 and a half months of construction work, the 4-classroom Kapuso
School building was finished and turned over to a thankful community. Each
classroom has a comfort room with sink and toilet, a concave blackboard that
allowed students seated at the back of the classroom to see what is written on the
board more clearly, windows and doors with steel, termite-resistant jambs, twin
ceiling fans by Hanabishi, and a 5-faucet handwashing station outside. Like all

BEFORE

Kapuso schools, this was also built to withstand earthquakes of
up to intensity 8 and typhoons with maximum sustained winds
of 300 kph. Attending the inaugural rites were GMAKF EVP and
COOQO, Ms. Rikki Escudero-Catibog, New Zealand Ambassador H.E.
Peter Kell, and the Municipal Mayor of Burgos, Siargao, the Hon.
Angie Arcena. On the part of the AFP, in attendance were Eastern
Mindanao Deputy Commander BGen. Potenciano Camba, 4th
Infantry Division Assistant DivCom BGen. Joel Paloma, 52nd
Army Engineer Brigade Commander BGen. Marlon Wong and
the Commander of the 901st Infantry Brigade BGen. George
Banzon. From the Department of Education, in attendance were
the Regional Director of Dep-Ed CARAGA, Ms. Maria Gemma
Ledesma, CESO V, Siargao Schools Division Superintendent,
Ms. Nelia Lomocso, CEMEX Philippines Foundation Executive
Director, Ms. Erlinda Lizardo, PPG Philippines Incs Mr. Ruel
Martinez and Manila Water Foundation’s Ms. lvy Jill de Leon.



MOA SIGNING
GROUNDBREAKING

We give our warmest thanks to all partners
and sponsors who supported us in this endeavor:

» Concrete Stone Corp.

+ Lotus Tools Philippines

+ Apex Mining Co., Inc.

« New Zealand Embassy-Manila
« CEMEX Philippines Foundation
+ Manila Water Foundation

« PPG Coatings (Philippines), Inc.
« Seaborne Shipping Lines, Inc.

» American Standard Philippines
+ Mariwasa Siam Ceramics, Inc.

+ Hanabishi

« Yale Philippines

We also thank our service partners who worked with

us to finish the school on time, before Christmas:

« Armed Forces of the Philippines

- Eastern Mindanao Command, AFP

« Philippine Army

« 4th Infantry Division, PA

+ 901st Infantry Brigade, PA

- 30th Infantry Battalion, PA

+ 52nd Engineer Brigade, PA

+ 544th Engineer Construction Battalion, PA

2 J GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
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GMA Kapuso Foundation accepted with heartfelt thanks, the 5
Million Peso donation of the Century Peak Cement Manufacturing
Corporation for victims of Super Typhoon Odette. Said donation
was utilized for the massive distribution of relief goods in the
Visayas and Mindanao, to include relief distributions in Cebu, where
Century Peak Cement Manufacturing Corporation is based.

The Philippine Army donated 4 Million Pesos to GMA Kapuso Foundation’s
Operation Bayanihan in four (4) provinces badly affected by Super
Typhoon Odette - Bohol, Surigao, Leyte and Cebu.

The Commanding General of the Army, Lt. Gen. Romeo Brawner Jr,
handed over the heartfelt donations of the army soldiers nationwide
to GMAKF's Senior Project Staff, Tina Dungca. Army soldiers sacrificed a
portion of their subsistence allowance, to be able to donate to Kapuso
relief operations in the Visayas and Mindanao. 3 Million Pesos of the
Army’s donation was used to construct 3 schools in Typhon Odette
devastated provinces (Surigao, Limasawa Island and Southern Leyte).

GMA Kapuso Foundation received with thankfulness, the 2 Million
Peso donation of APEX Mining Co., Inc. for our school’s developmental
infrastructure project in Super Typhoon Odette devastated Siargao
Island, Surigao del Norte. The donation was turned over by APEX
Mining President and CEO, Luis Sarmiento which was received by
GMAKF EVP/COO, Rikki Escudero-Catibog.



Residents of Barangay San Juan, Sogod despaired of ever having
their rickety old bridge, destroyed by Super Typhoon Odette,
replaced. They risked drowning every time they crossed the area’s
river which becomes treacherously deep whenever it rained. But
they had torisk it to get their produce sold in the local market and
so that their children could attend the elementary school which
was on the opposite side of the river. As an early Christmas gift,
GMAKF presented the 824 residents of the Barangay with their
longed-for sturdy steel and concrete hanging bridge measuring
70 meters, which can be used not just by pedestrians but also
by popular habal-habals or local motorcycle rides. Construction
of the bridge began on August 4, 2022, and it was finished by
December 10, 2022 - 4 months later. Present at the momentous
turnover rites were GMAKF EVP and COO, Ms. Rikki Escudero-
Catibog; the Commander of the Philippine Army’s 8th Infantry
Division, MGen. Camilo Ligayo; 802nd Brigade Commander,
BGen. Noel Vestuir and Sogod, Southern Leyte Vice Mayor, the
Hon. Atty. Jose Ramil Golo.




GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION

the Kapuso Tulay Para sa Kaunlaran ng Sogod built:

«  LotusTools Philippines

+  Boysen Paints Philippines

»  Equator Energy Corporation

- Santa Clara Shipping Corporation

«  Meridian Shipping and Container Carrier, Inc.

Sincere thanks also to our service partners who helped us tremendously in seeing
the Kapuso 2022 bridge project to fruition:

Visayas Command, AFP
Philippine Army

8th Infantry Division, PA
802nd Infantry Brigade, PA
14th Infantry Battalion, PA
53rd Engineer Brigade, PA

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Thank you so much to all our donors and partners whose help was instrumental in getting

546th Engineer Construction Battalion, PA

GROUNDBREAKING

CEREMONY
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GMAKEF PILLAR PROJECTS

Operation Bayanihan

PAGASA declared 2022 to be a La Nina year
characterized by heightened rainfall. This was felt 3 %—
by the arrival of 4 additional typhoons: Agaton A\

in April which devastated Agusan Del Sur in
Mindanao, Capiz, Leyte and lloilo in the Visayas;

and the consecutive typhoons of Florita (August)

which devastated Isabela and Cagayan Provinces;

Karding (September) which battered Aurora,

Quezon and Bulacan in Luzon and Severe Tropical A
Storm Paeng (October) which affected Camarines -
Sur, Bulacan, Cavite in Luzon, Antique in the Visayas
and Maguindanao in Mindanao.

GMAKF distributed relief goods to over 92,000
beneficiaries in all these affected areas.
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Operation Bayanihan: Typhoon Agaton

AGUSAN DEL SUR

'NO. OF INDIVIDUALS

DATE MUNICIPALITIES BARANGAYS NO. OF FAMILIES
Brgy. Bunawan Brook 349 1396
Brgy. Mambalili 298 1192
April 9, 2022 Bunawan Brgy. San Marcos 367 1468
Brgy. Nueva Era 386 1544
SERVED 1,400 families 5,600 individuals
LEYTE
Brgy. Villa Solidaridad 380 1520
Brgy. Bunga 14 56
Brgy. Kagumay 175 700
Brgy. Mailhi 98 392
Brgy. Kantagnos 158 632
April 15—18, 2022 Baybay Brgy. Poblacion Zone 23 95 380
Brgy. Gaas 80 320
Brgy. Ambacan 140 560
Brgy. Higlo-an 150 600
Brgy. Bubon 82 328
Brgy. Mailhi 26 104
Brgy. Imelda 62 248
Brgy. Bahay 107 428
Abuyog Brgy. Malaguicay 164 656
Brgy. Pilar 132 528
April 18-22, 2022 Brgy. Bunga 567 2,268
Mahaplag Brgy. Liberation 70 280
SERVED 2,500 families 10,000 individuals
PROVINCE OF ILOILO
Brgy. Poblacion 280 1,120
Brgy. Nabitasan 420 1,680
April 18-22, 2022 Leganes Brgy. Guinobatan 300 1,200
SERVED 1,000 families 4,000 individuals
PROVINCE OF CAPIZ
April 19, 2022 President Roxas Brgy. Aranguel 1,500 6,000
SERVED 6,000 individuals

1,500 families
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Operation Bayanihan: Typhoon Karding

PROVINCE OF BATAAN

DATE MUNICIPALITIES BARANGAYS NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
September 26, 2022 Balanga Poblacion 57 228
SERVED 57 families 228 individuals
METRO MANILA
DATE MUNICIPALITIES BARANGAYS NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
September 26, 2022 Quezon City Brgy. Bagong Silangan 250
(Soup Kitchen)
Brgy. Bagong Silangan 100 400
SERVED 100 families 650 individuals
PROVINCE OF ZAMBALES
DATE MUNICIPALITIES BARANGAYS NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
September 26, 2022 Poblacion 24 96
SERVED 24 families 96 individuals
PROVINCE OF RIZAL
DATE MUNICIPALITIES BARANGAYS NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
September 26, 2022 Poblacion 24 96
SERVED 24 families 96 individuals
PROVINCE OF AURORA
DATE MUNICIPALITIES BARANGAYS NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
September 27, 2022 Dingalan Brgy. Umiray 1,000 4000
SERVED 1,000 families 4,000 individuals
PROVINCE OF BULACAN
DATE MUNICIPALITIES BARANGAYS NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
Brgy. Salambao 107 428
September 26, 2022 Oband < = £
REIREGES Hee Bray. Hulo 9 36
Brgy. Binuangan 15 60
Obando Municipal Hall 500
(Soup Kitchen)
September 27-28, 2022 Brgy. Bagong Silang 500 2000
September 28, 2022 San Miguel Brgy. Mandili 500 2,000
SERVED 1,150 families 5,100 individuals




PROVINCE OF QUEZON

DATE MUNICIPALITIES BARANGAYS NO. OF FAMILIES
September 26, 2022 Infanta Brgy. Dinahican 195 780
Brgy. Tongohin 365 1,460
Brgy. Libjo 167 668
Brgy. Banglos 33 132
Brgy. Catablingan 30 120
September 27, 2022 General Nakar Brgy. Minahan Norte &7 e
Brgy. Anoling 18 72
Brgy. Batangan 4 16 !
Brgy. Banglos 101 404 ]
Brgy. Umiray 1,000 4,000
Brgy. Balite 76 304
Brgy. Pulang Lupa 128 512 &
Brgy. Bucal 105 420 s ALAN :
September 28, 2022 Bordeos Brgy. Judith 113 452 ko S et
Brgy. Sabang 108 432 Z
Brgy. Catmon 74 296
Brgy. Centro 75 300
Brgy. Police Pob 21 84
Brgy. Binibitinan 251 1004
Brgy. Taluong 200 800
September 29, 2022 Polillo Bray. Salipsip 104 216
Brgy. Anawan 245 980
Brgy. Libo 335 1,340
October 4-7, 2022 Panukulan Brgy. Rizal 749 2,99
Brgy. Bonbon 416 1,664
SERVED
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Operation Bayanihan

GMAKF also implemented its SILONG KAPUSO post-typhoon distribution of roofing
materials in aid of kababayans whose homes were damaged by super storms.
350 families affected by Super Typhoon Odette, and later in the year by Typhoon
Karding were beneficiaries, along with partner soldiers’detachments in areas where
the soldiers who helped us distribute relief goods, were victims themselves.
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PROVINCE AREA DISASTER IMPLEMEN]_‘JHIQN. NO. OF BENEFICIARIES
Buenavista March 2022 100 families
Typhoon Odette
Bohol 47" Infantry ®
Battalion, PA April 2022 54 Bunkhouse Units
Charlie Company
Southern Leyte Limasawa Island Typhoon Odette March 2022 100 families
General Nakar Quezon Typhoon Karding November 2022 150 families
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Limasawa, Southern Leyt
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Operation Bayanihan

It was just torrential, non-stop rain in July 2022 that caused
massive flooding and landslides in the northern areas
of Ifugao and Mountain Province. Muddy flood waters
entered many homes and people were forced to flee.

GMAKF responded immediately after the roads were
cleared and distributed food packs, hygiene kits, vitamin
supplements, groceryitems, fleece blanketsandfacemasks
to residents who had just returned to their homes, intent
on cleaning up. KF brought aid for 2,396 individuals from
Barangays Viewpoint, Tam-An and Amganad.

Mt. Province & Ifugao Flash Floods & Mudslide

DATE MUNICIPALITY | BARANGAY NO. OF FAMILIES NO. OF INDIVIDUALS
Brgy. Viewpoint 278 1,112

January 12-14, 2022 Banaue Brgy. Tam-an 200 800
Brgy. Amganad 121 484
TOTAL SERVED 599 2,396
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Operation Bayanihan

Volcanic Eruptions of Taal Volcano and Mt. Bulusan

The Philippines is known for its majestic volcanoes, but these imposing
landmarks come with its danger.

On March 26, 2022, Alert Level 3 (Magmatic Unrest) was raised over
Taal Volcano in the province of Batangas due to the phreatomagmatic
eruption of its Main Crater that generated up to 3,000 meter-tall eruption
plumes. Volcanic tremors and sulphur-smelling wet ashfall were reported
along the Calauit and Alas-as shorelines and on the lakeshore of Banyaga,
Agoncillo, Batangas. The magmatic intrusion at the Main Crater meant
that it may further drive succeeding eruptions. DOST-PHIVOLCS strongly
recommended that the Taal Volcano Island and high-risk barangays of
Bilibinwang and Banyaga, Agoncillo and Boso-Boso, Gulod and eastern
Bugaan East, Laurel in Batangas province, be evacuated due to the
possible hazards of pyroclastic density currents and volcanic tsunamis
should stronger eruptions subsequently occur.

This volcanic unrest prompted GMA Kapuso Foundation to immediately
activate its Operation Bayanihan disaster relief operation. A total of
3,068 evacuees in Agoncillo and Balete in Batangas were given relief
packs on March 27, 2022.

A mere two months after the Taal Volcano eruption, another volcano
in the province of Sorsogon in the Bicol region erupted. The Philippine
Institute of Volcanology and Seismology (PHIVOLCS) raised the alert
status of Mount Bulusan Volcano to Alert Level 1 (Low-level Unrest) on
June 5, 2022.

A phreatic eruption occurred at the volcano’s summit that produced a
sluggishgrayash plumethatrosemorethanakilometreanddispersed wet
ash with rainfall over the edifice. Thin fine ashfall affected the barangays
of Puting Sapa, Anog, Guruyan, Catanusan, Buraburan, Bacolod, and
Sangkayon in Juban and Bolos in Irosin, Sorsogon province. Rumbling
sound and sulfurous odor were also observed by the residents of Brgys.
Anog, Guruyan, and Catanusan. The ashfall, having high amounts of
sulphur, can cause irritation and breathing problems especially among
the vulnerable population - the elderly, children, expecting mothers



and those with respiratory disorders — and can be particularly dangerous
when inhaled in copious amounts.

GMA Kapuso Foundation once again quickly responded to the needs of
evacuees and distributed relief goods to 4,000 individuals on June 6-8,
2022 in Juban Sorsogon.

Giving aid to disaster-stricken Filipinos is a priority of GMA Kapuso
Foundation, and we are grateful to public and private donors for placing
their trust in us.

UNDATION
PORT 2022
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7.0 Magnitude Earthquake in Abra

On July 27,2022, a strong earthquake struck the island of Luzon with its
epicentre in Abra province. It was initially reported at a magnitude of 7.3
by the Philippine Institute of Volcanology and Seismology (PHIVOLCS)
but was later revised to an earthquake of 7.0 M with the epicentre in
Tayum, Abra. Homes, schools and other buildings were badly damaged.
Affected residents had to be evacuated.

GMA Kapuso Foundation held its Operation Bayanihan disaster relief
operations from July 31 to August 1, 2022 and distributed a total of
40,246 relief goods to evacuees in Banaue, San Juan, Bangued, Bucay,
Tayum and Lagangilag in the earthquake-damaged province of Abra.

When disaster strikes, time is of the essence. Through your generosity,
GMA Kapuso Foundation is able to quickly send crucial help to disaster-
stricken Filipinos.
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Shear Line Phenomena in Misamis Occidental and Oroquieta City

Christmas weekend in 2022 was sadly marred by a shear line phenomenon
in parts of eastern, central and southern Philippines. A shear line is the point
where warm and cold air meet which triggers rain. Heavy rains and floods
devastated the province of Misamis Occidental in Mindanao. Homes, roads
and bridges were damaged and affected by the floods.

From December 26 to 29, 2022, GMA Kapuso Foundation’s Operation
Bayanihan disaster relief operation distributed relief goods to a total of 8,000
evacuees in Oroquieta City and Clarin, Misamis Occidental.

Working as one is vital to efficiently giving aid, and GMA Kapuso Foundation
is grateful to our multi-sectoral partners and donors for sharing the mission
of alleviating poverty for those who need help the most.
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Operation Bayanihan

Diarrhea Outbreak Hits Dumagat Katutubos in Tanay, Rizal

A deadly diarrhea outbreak in the mountain of Tanay, Rizal
badly affected the Dumagat Indigenous People community.
The illness started after the onslaught of Super Typhoon
Karding on September 25, 2022. The town’s medical team
reported that the diarrhea outbreak was traced to the
spring water contaminated with feces. More than a hundred
tribesmen were sick and some were hospitalized. The outbreak
claimed four lives.

GMA Kapuso Foundation headed to the affected upland
village in Tanay, Rizal on October 6, 2022. The team served
1,050 individuals and gave water purification tablets, relief
goods and hot porridge of the Kapuso Soup Kitchen under the
Operation Bayanihan disaster relief project.

Reaching remote communities is not an easy feat, but it is
essential to give the necessary aid to Filipinos in distress.



r ; .
Punta Princesa in Cebu City. The 5 sitios of Punta Princesa were hitmg'é '!Fe. -
Unfortunately, the road was too narrow and the fire trucks had a difficult time in
reaching all sitios. .

Senior Fire Officer 2 (SFO2) Wendell Villanueva, Information Officer of the Cebu City
Fire Office (CCFO), said they were able to establish that the fire was set intentionally.
The CCFO also confirmed that one person died.

GMA Kapuso Foundation together with the 14 CMO Battalion, Philippine Army and
CSWDO Cebu City, provided assistance to the fire survivors by giving relief goods to
2,704 individuals. Food packs consisted of canned goods, rice and noodles.
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. Give-A-Gift: Surgical Project
Hea Ith PrOjeCtS A joint project of GMA Kapuso Foundation and the World
Surgical Foundation Philippines, surgical assistance was given to
24 patients with congenital defects like imperforate anuses and
Hirschsprung disease, confined at Our Lady Of Peace Hospital
in Parafaque - the charity hospital headquarters of our surgical
partner, WSF-Philippines.

Bisig Bayan Medical Assistance

GMA Kapuso Foundation gave free medicine, laboratory exams, surgical
supplies, blood donations and other medical services to 28 patients from
January to December 2022 with strict adherence to COVID safety protocols.

Patients were asked to email their requests, then our GMAKF staff would call MARCH

them fora more detailed assessment. Upon GMAKF management’s approval,

apledge formis picked up by the beneficiary or an authorized representative Women’s Health Month

(if the beneficiary is incapacitated) at the lobby of the KF office so they GMA Kapuso Foundation recognized women’s valuable
can purchase medicine and avail of the free laboratory examinations and contribution to society by providing free PAP smears and
medical services. There were no face-to-face consultations and assessments breast examinations, cervical cancer screening, reproductive
this year because of the ongoing pandemic. healthcare and breast self-examination lectures to 320 indigent

women from Antipolo City, Pangasinan, Benguet and Cavite.
Subjects of Appeal

From January to December, GMA Kapuso Foundation covered the treatments
of 12 patients who were featured on the Kapusong Totoo segment of GMA's
24 Oras primetime newscast. These cases were provided with operations,
surgical removal of lumps, medicine and laboratory services.



MAY

Mother’s Day Project

GMA Kapuso Foundation celebrated Mother's Day
by serving 100 indigent women from Cavite again
through the provision of free PAP smear tests and breast
examinations, grocery packs, hygiene Kkits, slippers and
supplies of surgical masks for families.

Hypertension Awareness Month

In May, 100 charcoal makers from Catmon, Malabon were
given free ECG, lipid profile and fasting blood sugar test.
We also gave them grocery packs, meals and hygiene kits.

JUNE

Prostate Cancer Awareness Month % 2 P _—
Fathers play an important role in the upbringing of children. In celebration
of Father’s Day and in commemoration of Prostate Cancer Awareness
Month, 50 fishermen from Bulacan and 50 rope makers from Valenzuela
were given free prostate specific antigen and urinalysis tests, grocery packs,

hygiene kits, caps and life vests.
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JULY

National Disability Prevention and
Rehabilitation Week

In commemoration of the National Council
on Disability Affair's National Disability
Prevention and Rehabilitation Week in July,
GMA Kapuso Foundation gave wheelchairs,
strollers and arm/hand prostheses to 80
physically challenged patients nationwide.

30 patients nationwide received arm/hand
prostheses from GMA Kapuso Foundation’s
partners LN4 Foundation and Naked Wolves
Philippines.

50 physically challenged patients in Amlan,
Jimalalud, Bayawan, Leyte and Sibulan in
Negros Oriental received new wheelchairs,
strollers, assorted goods, vitamin supplements
and meals.




AUGUST

Sight Saving Month

In observance of Sight Saving Month, 148 students of
North Bay Boulevard in Navotas, Manila were given
free reading and corrective eyeglasses.

50 beneficiaries underwent free diabetic retinopathy
screening at the Dr. J. Paulino Garcia Memorial Research
and Medical Center in Cabanatuan, Nueva Ecija to
detect if their blurry vision is caused by diabetes.

OCTOBER

Linis Lusog Kapuso Ng Kabataan
In June and October, 512 Kindergarten to Grade 6 pupils and
their families from Tagkawayan, Quezon received hygiene
kits and fluoride varnish application. They also participated
in handwashing and toothbrushing drills in line with Global
Handwashing week.

200 children from Tanay, Rizal who were affected by a diarrhea
outbreak were fed by the Kapuso Soup Kitchen and received
hygiene kits, assorted grocery items and vitamins supplements.

NOVEMBER

National Children’s Month
GMA Kapuso Foundation celebrated National Children’s month
through the distribution of essential goods and wheelchairs.

12 strollers were given to infant and toddler beneficiaries who
have cerebral palsy, seizure disorders, TB meningitis and mental
disabilities in Juban, Sorsogon.
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Subject of Appeal Cases

The impetuousness of the youth has led to the recent sharp quickly responded to Marina’s SOS, arranged for her to be brought to partner
rise in the occurrence of sexually transmitted diseases among government hospital, East Avenue Medical Center’'s OB-Gyne Oncology

youngsters. GMAKF helped two such beneficiaries in 2022: Department where she was eventually operated on in two tranches until
her massive genital warts which coalesced to the size of a large cauliflower,
MARINA was finally removed entirely. GMAKF provided funds for laboratory tests and

diagnostics, blood for the operation through its partner, the Philippine Red
Now 25 years old as of this writing, Marina was 18 when she first Cross, vitamin supplements, post-operation medicine and groceries.
had sex with her then boyfriend. On the same year, she noticed a
pimple-like growth in her private parts which quickly grew to the  Special thanks to partners and sponsors :
size of two closed fists. It turned out to be fast-growing genital Dr. Grace Beltran (GMAKF Special consultant in Dermatology for the initial
warts. Initial tests at a government hospital showed Marina had consultation and biopsy)
an STD - HPV brought about by unsafe sex. By the time she Dr. German Tan Cardoso and the OB-GYNE Department Operating Team, EAMC
- messaged GMAKF's Facebook page in East Avenue Medical Center
2022 to seek help, Marina had The Philippine Red Cross
confined herself to the little =~ The CDRRMO of Sto. Tomas, Batangas (Ambulance Service)
home she shares with her  Clearbridge Medical Philippines, Inc. (Antigen Tests)
brother, because she had
to wear diapers at all times
due to her untreated
genital warts which had
begun to weep and had
grown to the size of a
large cauliflower. GMAKF

BEFORE




LOUIE

Louie saw Marina’s story aired on GMA's primetime
newscast, 24 Oras and messaged GMAKF seeking
help for his own similar condition. Louie met his
lover on a social media site in 2020 when he was
only 18. On the same year he started and ended his
brief sexual relationship, Louie tested positive at a
health center for HIV. In 2021, he started drinking HIV
medications, but by then he already experienced an
explosion of genital warts which prevented him from
sitting down properly. GMAKF facilitated his transfer
and treatment at partner medical institution, San
Lazaro Hospital, where his massive genital growth
(between 1-2 kilos) was surgically removed and he
received the full battery of anti-HIV drugs. GMAKF's
consultant for dermatological cases, Dr. Grace
Beltran also prescribed antibiotics, pain relievers
and antiseptic wash - all of which were provided
Louie along with vitamin supplements to boost his
immunity, hygiene kits and grocery items.

Louie received twin blessings from the':ﬁ%* (
year: he graduated from his local high school wi
in 2022 and last October 31, 2022 he reported to‘? -
monitoring nurse staff that his HIV was controlled to a
undetectable level.

Special thanks to partner doctors :

San Lazaro Hospital’s

Dr. Richard Manera (General Surgery)

Dr. Talita Lacuesta (Medicine Department)

Dr. Edward Woo (Orthopedic Surgery)

Dr. Dianne Sia (Dermatology)

Dr. Grace Beltran (GMAKF Special consultant in
Dermatology)
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The Boy With The Giant Tongue

An inborn congenital anomaly caused the tongue of an 8-year-old boy to grow to gigantic
proportions. Gadiel Caagusan is the eldest child of 3 siblings and was then a Grade
3 student, but was forced to stop regular schooling because his tongue wouldn't stop
growing until it hung out of his mouth and was as large as half his face. Gadiel lives with
his Lolo and Papa as his parents are already separated. His father works for a food delivery
service while his grandfather works as a cab driver. Both did not have enough to see to
the boy’s long treatment, which is why they sought the help of GMA Kapuso Foundation
by messaging our official FB page. KF moved quickly, taking the boy to our consulting
ENT specialist, Dr. Gil Vicente. Finally, a definitive answer to what is wrong with Gadiel
and how to treat it was revealed: Hemangioma of the tongue, involving abnormal veins
in the tongue which can be treated via monthly sclerotherapy, with a maximum of 10
sessions. Sclerotherapy is a procedure used to treat blood vessel and lymphatic system
malformations. Medicine is injected into the swollen vessels which make them shrink.
Treatment is costly, so GMAKF took to nationwide TV via its Kapusong Totoo segment on
GMA's primetime newscast, 24 Oras to appeal for donations. We found a generous donor
and partner in JC Cares Foundation which donated 250,000 PHP for Gadiel’s treatment.



MEASUREMENT OF THE TONGUE (cm)

PEEERE PHERARY DATE CIRCUMFERENCE | LENGTH | WIDTH REMARKS

SESSION

BASELINE APRIL 22 cm 10 cm 10 cm
1 MAY 18 cm 9cm 8cm
2 JUNE 17 cm 8cm 7cm
3 JuLy 16 cm 8cm 7cm
4 AUGUST 15 ecm 7cm 6ecm
5 SEPTEMBER 13.5cm 5.5cm S5cm
6 OCTOBER 12 cm 5.5 cm 6cm
7 JANUARY 8cm 48cm | 48cm

RESULT 14 cm 5cm 5.2cm DECREASE IN TONGUE SIZE

After only 7 sclerotherapy treatments, Gadiel’s giant tongue has
shrunk. Hopefully, with God'’s grace, it continues to normalize. See
the remarkable results in the graph.

Special thanks to our donors and sponsors:
JC Cares Foundation
Dr. Gil Vicente, ENT
Dr. Marvin Tamana and the Vascular & Interventional
Radiology Department Team, PHC
Philippine Heart Center
CDRRMO of Mandaluyong City
Singapore Diagnostics
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Due to the pandemic and the limitations of face-to-face communications, GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION launched Kapuso Kalusugan Konsulta (KKK)
and encouraged the needy to send their appeals for help via e-mail and through our official Facebook page.

Some GMAKF e-mail and letter senders who went on to become Subject of Appeal Cases:
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Willy Gutaba is a 55-year-old single father of 4 intellectually impaired children (aged 22-18 years
old) whose wife had died from breast cancer. Willy is from Santa Maria, Bulacan and ekes a living
from sewing apparel. He earns 65 pesos for every dozen shorts he sews on his borrowed sewing
machine. To earn enough, he begins sewing at 3 am. Willy messaged GMAKF's official FB page,
seeking help not for himself, but for his youngest daughter who had frequent rages and had not
yet been seen by a doctor. GMAKF responded to Willy’s appeal for aid and referred his daughter
to a developmental pediatrician, Dr. Jocelyn Eusebio, who conducted an online psychological
and medical consultation. GMAKF likewise provided needed maintenance medicine, vitamin
supplements, hygiene kits and face masks for the entire family. GMAKF tapped the Pit Master
Foundation for a brand new sewing machine donation, complete with sewing materials and thread.
GMAKEF also brought the family new mattresses, mats and blankets, as well as grocery packs.




Fermina Macallan is a 71-year-old hypertensive senior from Tre&;
Martirez, Cavite in dire economic hardship. She wrote to GMAKF -
seeking help for her hypertension and requesting for a second hand
refrigerator that would help in her livelihood of selling food. She earns
300 pesos a day from selling viands, but was problematic as she had
no refrigerator for storage and had to travel to the home of a friend
to store leftovers in that friend's fridge. Fermina lives with her single
daughter who lost her job during the pandemic. GMAKF was moved
by pity to act on Fermina’s behalf. We received a donation for a brand-
new refrigerator from long time KF sponsor, Hanabishi Appliances, and
procured hypertension medicine and vitamins for Fermina, as well as
grocery packs. Shortly after, Fermina updated us with good news:
their daily income increased from a mere 300 pesos per day to a more
substantial 1,600 pesos per day.

Editha Festejo is a 66-year-old avid fan of Tita Mel Tiangco who wrote
a letter requesting for a small television set and some goods for her
little sari-sari store which is her family’s only source of income. She
requested the TV set so she could watch Tita Mel on 24 Oras and
Magpakailanman, as she could only follow the news on GMA's AM
radio station, DZBB, and had a hard time doing so. When GMAKF visited
Editha, we discovered that she was actually suffering from hearing loss,
her store was literally falling apart and her neighbors got food items
from her store on loan, but never paid her back. What a sorry state of
affairs! GMAKF got to work, getting the support of the Armed Forces
of the Philippines (its Charlie company 402nd Ready Reserve Infantry
Battalion) for manpower to conduct repairs on Editha’s little sari-
sari store, while GMAKF sourced the materials needed. She was also
assessed by GMAKF ENT consultant, Dr. Gil Vicente, who recommended
a hearing test to ascertain her level of impairment. Editha underwent
free audiometry and tympanometry tests at the Ledesma Audiological
Center and was given bilateral low power hearing aids. GMA Network
gave Editha a GMA Affordabox while GMAKF television sponsor,
Skyworth gifted her - not with a“small TV set”- but rather, a brand new
40-inch android smart TV. GMAKF also gave Editha a replenishment
of goods for her sari-sari store, and advised Editha not to lend out her
goods but to strive for cash sales for her business to thrive.
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Reaching Public Elementary Students Nationwide b

In the hope of minimizing drop out students of public elementary
schools nationwide, the Unang Hakbang Sa Kinabukasan Project
provides customized and sturdy school bags with complete sets
of school supplies to incoming Kindergarten and Grade 1 indigent
pupils every year.

In 2022, a total of 60,000 children including Indigenous People
from the following poorest provinces and cities were our UHSK
beneficiaries: Limasawa Island, Leyte, Sulu, Tawi-Tawi, Western
Samar, Southern Leyte, Lanao del Norte, Bukidnon, Eastern Samar,
Surigao del Sur, Agusan del Norte, lloilo, Capiz, Bohol, Negros
Oriental, Surigao del Norte, Agusan del Sur, Sarangani, Dinagat
Island, Cebu, Romblon, North Cotabato, Davao Oriental, Davao
Occidental, Sultan Kudarat and Maguindanao.

By supporting the educational needs of diligent Filipino students,
we give them the chance to create a promising future!
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Give-A-Gift, Alay Sa Batang Pinoy: Bringing Holiday Joy

The holiday season can be lonely for some people, especially when
struck by the pandemic and disasters. The yearly Give-A-Gift, Alay sa
Batang Pinoy Christmas project wishes to let underprivileged children
feel that they are remembered and cared for.

Noche Buena packs, toys and special food items, packed in customized
Give-A-Gift reusable bags were shared with 60,000 children from
Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao. The chosen areas were: Sulu, Basilan,

Saranggani, Tawi-Tawi, Eastern Samar, Camarines Sur, Western Samar,
Negros Oriental, North Cotabato, Surigao, Cebu, Bohol, Sorsogon,
Sultan Kudarat, Southern Leyte, Aurora, Mt. Province, Negros
Occidental, Quezon, Abra, Isabela, South Cotabato, Cagayan, and
Nueva Ecija.

We are grateful to partners and donors who give from the goodness
of their hearts!
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Kapuso Cancer Champions = == R T

True champions do not give up, no matter what. We salute
the brave children who are battling cancer and their resilient
parents who fight everyday to beat this cruel disease.

Five cancer-stricken children under GMA Kapuso Foundation’s
care continued to receive blood bag donations in partnership
with the Philippine Red Cross, and free chemotherapy
medicine through the Kapuso Cancer Champions project.

The spirit to live is born out of love, faith and hope!

Christian Ivan Bulac

ol
§ Matt Zedrick Selencio
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Kapuso ng Kalikasan

In 2022, the Philippines was unfortunately hit by several typhoons,
volcanic eruptions, landslides, flash floods and earthquakes. It is
imperative that we take care of the environment to protect us from
nature’s wrath. GMA Kapuso Foundation’s Kapuso ng Kalikasan project
upholds environmental advocacy by planting trees nationwide.

This year, 1,720 individuals who were affected by Super Typhoon
Odette benefitted from Kapuso ng Kalikasan’s tree planting projects
from September to December in Liloan, Limasawa Island and Sogod in
Southern Leyte, and in Siargao, Surigao del Norte.

The efforts that we put in today bear fruits for the youth.

. —
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Sagip Dugtong Buhay

Sacrificing for others without asking for anything in return is a
noble act of kindness. GMA Kapuso Foundation’s Sagip Dugtong
Buhay bloodletting project in partnership with the Philippine Red
Cross mobilized blood donors nationwide with strict adherence to
COVID-19 safety protocols.

We thank the selfless residents of BF Homes in Las Pifas, the valiant soldiers
of the Philippine Army, Training and Doctrine Command (TRADOC), the
Philippine Army in Tarlac, SAVER Comm (Social Action Volunteer Emergency
Radio Communications, Inc.), the Philippine Navy, Naval Air Wing, the
Philippine Fleet, and the cadets of the Philippine Military Academy who gave

gifts of life.

We salute the brave blood heroes from the National Capitol Region,

Cavite, Tarlac and Baguio City who gave a total of 1,836 blood bags

(450 cc) from March to October this 2022.

By sharing the best of ourselves with others, we change lives!

GMA”
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SAGIP DUGTONG BUHAY DATE OF NO. OF BLOOD BAGS CUBIC CENTIMETER OF VENUE
BLOODLETTING DONORS IMPLEMENTATION COLLECTED BLOOD COLLECTED
Philippine Army (HPA) March 4, 2022 216 97,200 Army Grandstand, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City
Training and Doctrine Command, March 29, 2022 251 112,950 TRADOC, Camp O'Donnell,
Philippine Army Capas, Tarlac
Philippine Navy May 6, 2022 122 54,900 BNS Grandstand, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City
BF Homes Almanza May 22, 2022 25 11,250 Multipurpose Hall, BF Homes
Almanza, Las Pifias City
SAVER Comm Main
(Social Action Volunteer August 13, 2022 64 28,800 Brgy. Alabang, Muntilupa City
Emergency Radio Communication)
Reserve Command, September 20, 2022 46 20,700 Covered Court, Paradahan I,
Philippine Army Tanza, Cavite
SAVER Comm Taguig
(Social Action Volunteer September 25, 2022 39 17,550 Bagumbayan Covered Court,
Emergency Radio Communication) Taguig City
Naval Air Wing — Philippine Fleet October 14, 2022 168 75,600 Sangley Point, Cavite City
Philippine Military Academy (PMA) October 16, 2022 600 270,000 ‘Yap Hall, PMA, Baguio City
Training and Doctrine Command, October 27, 2022 305 137,250 TRADOC, Camp O'Donnell,
Philippine Army Capas, Tarlac
GRAND TOTAL 826,200




Reserve Command, Philippine Army

e\
Training and Doctrine Command, Philippine Army

Philippine Army (HPA)
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Celebrity Ukay-Ukay 2022

Shop for a Cause! Celebrity Ukay-Ukay at the Noel Bazaar

After a break due to the pandemic, the Celebrity Ukay-Ukay booth
at the Noel Bazaar delights shoppers in Okada Manila and the World
Trade Center in Pasay in November 2022 with strict implementation of
health protocols to keep shoppers safe.

Spearheaded by Cut Unlimited, Inc. led by Mayose Bautista, CEO, and
co-presented by GMA Network, Inc., the 20-year old Noel Bazaar boasts
of a wide array of merchandise for shoppers, especially during the
holiday season. Part of the proceeds funded GMA Kapuso Foundation’s
Unang Hakbang Sa Kinabukasan school bags and supplies distribution
project and Operation Bayanihan disaster relief project.




GMA Kapuso Foundation’s Celebrity Ukay-Ukay booth at
the Noel Bazaar sells pre-loved clothes and other donated
items of Kapuso stars, GMA Integrated News and GMA
Public Affairs personalities, and Kapuso entertainment
shows donated by GMA Entertainment Group Visual
Applications Unit (VAU). Live Celebrity Auctions hosted
by Barangay LS 97.1 DJs were also featured where Kapuso
celebrities auction off their branded and special items to
the highest bidders. The entire proceeds of the Celebrity
Ukay-Ukay and Celebrity Auction support GMA Kapuso
Foundation’s educational and disaster relief projects.

The Noel Bazaar was a star-studded event attended by
GMA Kapuso Foundation Celebrity Ambassadors Rhian
Ramos, Carla Abellana, Michelle Dee and Kris Bernal.
GMA Sparkle Artists performers were Jessica Villarubin,
Garrett Bolden, Mitzi Josh, Mauie Francisco, Sheemee
Buenaobra, Princess Velasco, Jennie Gabriel, Mariane
Osabel, Vaness del Moral and Blvck Ace. Enchanted
Kingdom'’s Circle of Artist and Psalm of David Orchestra
also delighted the crowd with their performances.

Featured Celebrity Ukay-Ukay and Celebrity Auction
items were donated by Kapuso artists Marian Rivera,
Bea Alonzo, Heart Evangelista, Max Collins, Rhian Ramos,
Carla Abellana, Kris Bernal, Julie Ann San Jose, Gabbi
Garcia, Ruffa Mae Quinto, Christian Bautista, Patricia
Tumulak, Mark Herras and Manolo Pedrosa.

GMA Integrated News and GMA Public Affairs items were
donated by GMA Kapuso Foundation’s Ambassador and
Special Consultant Mel Tiangco, with Jessica Soho, Arnold
Clavio, Howie Severino, Pia Arcangel, Ivan Mayrina, Mariz
Umali, Sandra Aguinaldo, Kara David, Susan Enriquez,
Suzi Abrera, Mav Gonzales and Connie Sison.

Join us again this year at Okada Manila and the World
Trade Center in Pasay as we give holiday cheers to big-
hearted shoppers!
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GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATI
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Trustees

GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

GMA Network Center

EDSA corner Timog Avenue

Brgy. South Triangle Diliman, Quezon City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc. (a nonstock, nonprofit
organization) (the Foundation), which comprise the statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the statements of receipts and expenses, statements of changes in fund
balance and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Foundation as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards for Small and
Medium-sized Entities (PFRS For SMEs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Foundation in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS for SMEs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Foundation’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Foundation or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Foundation’s financial reporting
process.




PUSO FOUNDATION

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Foundation to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in Note 15 to the
financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the management
of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

i/ [Smsn_
Meynétd A. onoef
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0110259
Tax Identification No. 301-105-435
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 110259-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-136-2021, November 10, 2021, valid until November 9, 2024
PTR No. 9369786, January 3, 2023, Makati City

March 31, 2023
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GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

December 31
2022 2021
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) £298,571,864 £267,280,782
Short-term investments (Note 4) 5,220,063 5,214,612
Receivables (Note 5) 909,721 1,202,060
Other current assets 149,780 129,562
Total Current Assets 304,851,428 273,827,016
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment and software (Note 6) 1,058,953 392,208
Other noncurrent asset (Note 7) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,058,953 1,392,208
P306,910,381 £275,219,224
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (Note 8) £3,284,731 P3,524,644
Due to a related party (Note 14) 2,038,381 956,214
Total Current Liabilities 5,323,112 4,480,858
Noncurrent Liability
Pension liability (Note 13) 647,366 2,261,275
Total Liabilities 5,970,478 6,742,133
Fund Balance (Note 3)
Restricted 19,631,601 27,884,471
Unrestricted 281,308,302 240,592,620
Total Fund Balance 300,939,903 268,477,091
P£306,910,381 P275,219,224

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF RECEIPTS AND EXPENSES

Years Ended December 31
2022 2021
RESTRICTED
Receipts/revenues -

Projects (Note 9) £9,815,805 £14,336,176
Program expenses -

Projects cost (Note 11) 18,068,675 13,524,155
Excess (deficiency) of restricted receipts over expenses (8,252,870) 812,021
UNRESTRICTED

Receipts/revenues:

Projects (Note 9) 41,579,245 22,947,785

Donations (Note 10) 80,394,952 138,858,566

Interest income (Note 4) 1,354,094 1,089,520

Foreign exchange gain - net 9,342,999 5,811,910

132,671,290 168,707,781
Program expenses:

Project cost (Note 11) 79,024,301 80,895,340

Salaries and wages (Note 11) 4,211,932 4,473,051

Donation expense (Note 11) 575,883 346,855
Administrative expenses:

Compensation and employee benefits (Note 12) 4,565,771 5,556,864

Repairs and maintenance 1,084,344 1,103,718

Transportation and travel 688,848 843,224

Office supplies 295,008 344,738

Depreciation (Note 6) 498,065 333,369

Communication 203,448 174,221

Entertainment, amusement and recreation 70,591 78,273

Taxes and licenses 17,900 20,000

Others 719,517 533,472

91,955,608 94,703,125
Excess of unrestricted receipts over expenses 40,715,682 74,004,656
EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENSES P32,462,812 £74,816,677

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Years Ended December 31
2022 2021
RESTRICTED

Balance at beginning of year £27,884,471 27,072,450
Excess (deficiency) of receipts over expenses (8,252,870) 812,021
Balance at end of year (Note 3) 19,631,601 27,884,471

UNRESTRICTED
Balance at beginning of year 240,592,620 166,587,964
Excess of receipts over expenses 40,715,682 74,004,656
Balance at end of year (Note 3) 281,308,302 240,592,620
£300,939,903 P268,477,091

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of receipts over expenses £32,462,812 £74,816,677
Adjustments for:
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) - net (9,342,999) (5,811,910)
Interest income (Note 4) (1,354,094) (1,089,520)
Pension benefit, net of contributions (Note 13) (1,613,909) (1,169,187)
Depreciation (Note 6) 498,065 333,369
Excess of receipts over expenses before working capital changes 20,649,875 67,079,429
Decrease (increase) in:
Short-term investments (5,451) (3,726,356)
Receivables 292,339 862,876
Other current assets (20,218) 50,877
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (239,913) (4,410,074)
Due to a related party 1,082,167 (2,405,336)
Net cash flows provided by operations 21,758,799 57,451,416
Interest received 1,354,094 1,117,194
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 23,112,893 58,568,610
CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY
Decrease in other noncurrent assets — 1,000,000
Addition to property and equipment (Note 6) (1,164,810) (13,476)
(1,164,810) 986,524
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21,948,083 58,555,134
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,342,999 5,811,910
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 267,280,782 202,913,738
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(Note 4) P298,571,864 P267,280,782

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L.

Corporate Information

GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) was incorporated in the Philippines and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on April 24, 1991 as a nonstock,
nonprofit organization under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines. The primary activity of the
Foundation is to engage in philanthropic, humanitarian and charitable activities for public welfare.
The registered office address of the Foundation is GMA Network Center EDSA corner Timog
Avenue, Brgy. South Triangle, Diliman, Quezon City.

As a nonstock, nonprofit organization, the Foundation is exempt from income tax under the
conditions set forth in Section 30 (E) of the National Internal Revenue Code (NIRC).

On August 23, 2018, the Philippine Council for NGO Certification (PCNC) renewed its accreditation
to the Foundation valid for five (5) years from August 23, 2018 to August 22, 2023.

On July 9, 2019, the BIR issued a Certificate of Registration (COR) to the Foundation, being duly
accredited by PCNC, as a donee institution in accordance with the provisions of Revenue Regulations
(RR) No. 13-98 dated December 8, 1998. Accordingly, donations received by the Foundation shall
entitle donors to the full or limited deduction pursuant to Section 34 (H)(1) or (2) and exemption from
donor’s tax pursuant to Section 101 (A)(2) of the NIRC of 1997, as amended. This certification is
valid until August 22, 2023 unless sooner revoked by the BIR for the violation of any provisions of
RR No. 13-98 or upon withdrawal of the certificate of accreditation by PCNC.

On September 17, 2020, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) renewed the Foundation’s Certificate
of Tax Exemption from income tax only on the revenues or receipts from projects and donations valid
for three (3) years from September 17, 2020 to September 16, 2023.

The accompanying financial statements of the Foundation were approved and authorized for issuance
by the Board of Trustees on March 31, 2023.

Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The financial statements are

presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Foundation’s functional and presentation currency.
Amounts are rounded off to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities (PFRS for SMEs).

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Foundation presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification.




GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION °
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 J

An asset is classified as current when it is:

= expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

= held primarily for the purpose of trading;

= expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

=  cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current when:

= it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

= it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

= it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

= there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Foundation classifies all other assets and liabilities as noncurrent.
Basic and Other Financial Instruments

The Foundation accounts for its financial instruments in accordance with Section 11, Basic Financial
Instruments, under PFRS for SMEs.

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Basic and other financial assets and liabilities are recognized
when the Foundation becomes a party to the contracts. Basic financial instruments are measured at
transaction price including transaction costs. If the contract constitutes a financing arrangement, it is
measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar
instrument, unless the assets and liabilities are classified as current and do not incorporate a finance
arrangement. If interest is not at a market rate, the fair value would be future payments discounted at
a market rate of interest. Other financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which is
usually their transaction price, and exclude transaction costs.

Subsequent Recognition. For basic financial instruments, at the end of each reporting period:

= Debt instruments, such as an account, note, or loan receivables or payables, are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate;

= Commitments to receive a loan are measured at cost less impairment; and

= Investments in non-convertible preferred shares and non-puttable ordinary, and preference shares
that are publicly traded or their fair value can otherwise be reliably measured, are measured at fair
value through profit and loss if a public market exists, otherwise at cost less impairment.

All other financial instruments are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, except
for equity instruments (and related contracts that would result in delivery of such instruments) that are
not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot be reliably determined, which are measured at cost
less impairment.

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Foundation’s basic financial instruments consist of cash and
cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables, accounts payable and other current liabilities
(excluding payable to government agencies) and due to a related party. The Foundation has no other
financial instruments measured at fair value.
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Determination of Fair Value. The standard makes use of a fair value hierarchy such as quoted prices
in an active market, prices in recent transactions for the identical assets (adjusted if necessary), and
use of a valuation technique (that reflects how the market would expect to price the asset and the
inputs reasonably represent market expectations). Fair value, where there is no active market, is only
considered reliable if the variability in the range of fair values is not significant and the probabilities
of various estimates can be reasonably assessed. Fair value of a liability cannot be below the amount
in a demand feature discounted to the reporting period. For all other financial instruments not listed
in an active market, the fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include using arm’s length transaction for an identical asset between knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, reference to current fair value of another asset that is substantially the
same as the asset being measured, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
relevant valuation model.

Impairment. At the end of each reporting period, an assessment is made as to whether there is
objective evidence of a possible impairment. If there is objective evidence of impairment, the
Foundation shall recognize an impairment loss in the statement of receipts and expenses immediately.

All equity instruments regardless of significance and other financial assets that are individually
significant shall be assessed for impairment individually and all other financial assets shall be
assessed for impairment either individually or grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics. The impairment loss of basic financial instruments at amortized cost is the difference
between carrying value and the revised cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The impairment loss of basic financial instruments at cost less impairment is the difference between
the carrying value and best estimate of the amount that would be received if the asset were sold at the
end of each reporting period.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the Foundation shall reverse the previously recognized impairment loss either
directly or by adjusting an allowance account. The Foundation shall recognize the amount of the
reversal in the statement of receipts and expenses immediately.

Other financial instruments carried at cost less impairment are impaired on the same basis as basic
financial instruments measured in the same manner.

Derecognition. The Foundation derecognizes a financial asset when:

= The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or are settled;

= The Foundation transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset; or

* The Foundation, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership, has
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell
the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

The Foundation derecognizes financial liabilities when:

= it is extinguished, i.e., when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, is cancelled or
expires; or

= profit and loss in recognized between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
or transferred to another party and the considerations paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

/ g Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit
rate. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known

r |
|
,f' o amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an
3 ! insignificant risk of change in value.
- Short-term Investments

RAPLUSO FOL NALT F Short-term investments include highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
LION, INC, amounts of cash with original maturities of more than three months but less than one year from dates
of acquisition and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

U I ERATIO Other Current Assets
Other current assets include medical insurance paid in advance and amortized over the term of the

contract.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price and other costs directly
attributable in bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, are normally charged as expense in the year such costs are incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond
its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of
property and equipment.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method, net of any estimated residual value, over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Computer equipment 3 years
Communication equipment 3 years
Video equipment 5 years
Office and mechanical equipment 5 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Office furniture and fixtures S years

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in depreciation method, useful life or
residual value of an asset, the depreciation of that asset is revised prospectively to reflect the new
expectations.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is credited or charged to current operations in the year the asset is derecognized.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use and no further
depreciation is charged to current operation.
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Impairment of Property and Equipment

At each reporting period, property and equipment is reviewed to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible
impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and
compared with its carrying amount. If estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is
reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the
statement of receipts and expenses.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related
assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or group of
related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the
statement of receipts and expenses.

Other Noncurrent Asset
Other noncurrent asset pertains to restricted cash in bank of the Foundation.

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current liabilities are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and
do not bear interest. These are recognized in the period in which the related money, goods or services
are received or when a legally enforceable claim against the Foundation is established or when the
corresponding assets or expenses are recognized.

Fund Balance
Fund balance represents the cumulative balance of the excess of receipts over expenses.

Restricted Fund Balance. Restricted fund balance results from contributions for which donor
imposed restrictions limit the Foundation’s use of an asset or its economic benefits.

Unvrestricted Fund Balance. Unrestricted fund balance generally results from revenue and other
income that are derived from the Foundation’s regular operations unless the receipts are limited by
donor-imposed restrictions. The Foundation’s expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net
assets.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of donations, receipts for projects and interest income (collectively referred to as
“receipts”). Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Foundation and the amount can be reliably measured.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Projects and Donations. Projects are amounts received to fund specific program of the Foundation.
Donations are general fund that is used to finance any program, including medical assistance of the
Foundation. Projects and donations are recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the donation will flow to the Foundation, which in most cases is upon receipt of the
donation from the donors. Donations in-kind are given to designated donees immediately.

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective yield
on the asset.

Expenses
Expenses are recognized when a decrease in economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an

increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
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Project costs and donation expenses are recognized on the basis of a direct association between the
cost incurred and revenue recognized by the Foundation.

Pension Costs

The Foundation has a funded, noncontributory retirement plan covering its permanent employees.
Pension costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method. The projected unit
credit method considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit
entitlement and measures each separately to build up the final obligation. Actuarial gain or loss and
past service costs are recognized immediately in the statement of receipts and expenses. Gains or
losses on the curtailment or settlement of pension benefits are recognized when the curtailment or
settlement occurs.

Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. Transactions in foreign currencies are
recorded using the closing exchange rate at the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are restated using the closing exchange rate at the reporting period.
All differences are taken to the statement of receipts and expenses. Nonmonetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial transactions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Foundation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Foundation expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed unless the

possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are
not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Events after the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Foundation’s financial position at
the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Foundation’s financial statements in conformity with PFRS for SMEs requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and related notes. Future events may occur which may cause the assumptions
used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements as these become reasonably determinable.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.



Judgment
Management makes judgments in the process of applying the Foundation’s accounting policies.

Judgment that has the most significant effect on the reported amounts in the financial statements is
discussed below.

Determination of Restricted and Unrestricted Receipts and Expenses. The Foundation reports
receipts as restricted if these were received with donor stipulation that limits the use of the donation,
otherwise it will be classified as unrestricted. Program expenses are classified as restricted following
the classification of the related receipts. Should the receipts from restricted be inadequate to fund the
program expenses, then the Foundation would assess whether it needs to obtain funds from the
unrestricted receipts.

Restricted receipts/revenue and program expenses amounted to £9,815,805 and 218,068,675 in 2022
and £14,336,176 and 13,524,155 in 2021, respectively (see Notes 9 and 11). Unrestricted
receipts/revenues, and program and administrative expenses amounted to £132,671,290 and
£91,955,608 in 2022 and 168,707,781 and £94,703,125 in 2021, respectively (see Notes, 9, 10 and
11). The accumulated restricted and unrestricted fund balance amounted to £19,631,601 and
P281,308,302 as at December 31, 2022 and P27,884,471 and £240,592,620 as at December 31, 2021,
respectively.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting period, that have a significant risk causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities, within the next financial year, are described below.

Assumptions on Pension Costs. The determination of the Foundation’s pension liability and pension
costs is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 13 and include, among others, discount rate and
expected rate of salary increase. Actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and
recognized in the period in which it occurs.

Pension liability amounted to 647,366 and £2,261,275 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively (see Note 13).

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

2022 2021
Cash on hand and in banks P148,839,646 £127,073,200
Cash equivalents 149,732,218 140,207,582

P298,571,864 P£267,280,782

Cash in banks carn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are short-term
placements made for varying periods of up to three months and earn interest at the respective short-
term placement rates.

Short-term placements with terms of more than three months, presented under “Short-term
investments” account in the statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance amounted to
P5,220,063 and 5,214,612 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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Interest income earned from cash in banks, cash equivalents and short-term investments amounted to
P1,354,094 and 21,089,520 in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

5. Receivables

This account consists of:

2022 2021

Advances to officers and employees $682,431 21,164,727
Advances to suppliers 138,630 -
Interest receivable 88,660 37,333
£909,721 £1,202,060

The terms and conditions of the above receivables are as follows:

e Advances to officers and employees and advances to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are
normally collected and liquidated within 30-60 days.

o Interest receivables are normally collected within the next financial year.

6. Property and Equipment and Software

The movements in property and equipment are as follows:

2022
Office and Office
Computer  Communication Video  Mechanical Transportation Furniture
Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment __ and Fixtures Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year £923,668 £287,976 £1,900,928 £463,193 £4,498,266 £733,262 £8,807,293
Additions 847,000 - - = 317,810 - 1,164,810
Balance at end of year 1,770,668 287,976 1,900,928 463,193 4,816,076 733,262 9,972,103
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 912,453 273,081 1,900,928 463,193 4,145,644 719,786 8,415,085
Depreciation 175,909 11,917 - - 307,544 2,695 498,065
Balance at end of year 1,088,362 284,998 1,900,928 463,193 4,453,188 722,481 8,913,150
Net Book Value $682,306 $2,978 P P £362,888 £10,781 1,058,953
2021
Office and Office
Computer ~ Communication Video  Mechanical ~ Transportation Furniture
Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment and Fixtures Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year £923,668 P287,976 1,900,928 P463,193 P4,498,266 P719,786 £8,793817
Additions — — — — — 13,476 13,476
Balance at end of year 923,668 287,976 1,900.928 463,193 4,498.266 733,262 8.807.293
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 893,249 261,164 1,900,928 463,193 3,843,396 719,786 8,081,716
Depreciation 19,204 11917 - - 302,248 — 333,369
Balance at end of year 912,453 273,081 1,900.928 463,193 4,145,644 719,786 8,415,085
Net Book Value PI1,215 14,895 P P P352,622 P13.476 £392,208
As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the net book value of software is as follows:
Cost - Balance at beginning and end of year P169,043
Accumulated Amortization -
Balance at beginning and end of year 169,643

Net Book Value P




7. Other Noncurrent Asset

On June 9, 2015, the Foundation received a Provisional Asset Preservation Order (PAPO) against a
donation received from a donor with an ongoing legal proceeding. The issued PAPO on the
Foundation’s bank account immediately forbids any transaction, withdrawal, deposit, transfer,
removal, conversion, concealment or other disposition of the cash amounting to £1,000,000 in the
said account. The said donation was deposited in a separate restricted bank account of the
Foundation.

8. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2022 2021

Accounts payable £2,283,855 £2,934,137
Payable to government agencies 422,269 188,107
Retention payable 410,727 211,974
Accrued expenses 167,880 190,426
P3,284,731 P3,524,644

The terms and conditions of the above liabilities follow:

e Accounts payable, retention payable and accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and are
normally settled within the next financial year. Accrued expenses pertain to administrative
expenses.

o Payable to government agencies is remitted within 30 days after reporting period.

9. Projects

Receipts for various projects are as follows:

2022 2021
Restricted:

Operation Bayanihan £8,920,848 P14,336,176
Kapuso School Rehabilitation Development 894,957 -
9,815,805 14,336,176

Unrestricted:
Operation Bayanihan 21,869,197 18,240,844
Give a Gift 12,176,972 608,159
Kapuso School Rehabilitation 3,299,742 2,627,684
Unang Hakbang sa Kinabukasan 3,227,343 1,116,351
Kalusugan Karavan 502,500 -
Sagip Dugtong Buhay 406,493 204,747
Bisig Bayan 96,998 150,000
41,579,245 22,947,785

P51,395,050 P37,283,961
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e Operation Bayanihan - a quick relief response to victims of natural and man-made disasters
anywhere in the country.

Brief descriptions of the Foundation’s projects are as follows:

e Kapuso School Rehabilitation/Development - includes a school-based program and
reconstruction of demolished bridges.

School-based program aims to foster integral education to provide students of underserved public
schools, both primary and secondary, of the following:

e Decent and functional classrooms which are conducive for learning;
e Water distribution and sanitation facilities; and
e Environmental awareness through tree-planting around the school building.

Reconstruction of demolished bridges program aims to connect remote communities to trade and
learning centers.

e Give a Gift (GAG) - the yearly distribution of customized Christmas packages to underprivileged
children from poor and far-flung areas. To address specific needs of some of these children, the
GAG evolved into sub-projects such as the GAG: Feeding, GAG: Surgical, GAG: Cancer Kid
and GAG: Distribution.

e Unang Hakbang sa Kinabukasan - yearly school opening project for incoming Grade 1 students
from poor and remote public elementary schools nationwide where they receive backpacks with
complete set of school materials.

e Kalusugan Karavan - a roving medical mission in far-flung areas where basic health services are
not accessible.

e Sagip Dugtong Buhay - an annual bloodletting project which promotes volunteerism by donating
blood to help save lives and extend the lives of others.

e Bisig Bayan - special projects in line with the monthly themes of the Department of Health such
as Ngiting Kapuso, Serbisyong Alay Sa Kababaihan, Operation Tuli, Serbisyong Alay Sa
Kalalakihan, Wheelchair and Hearing Aid Giving, Kapuso 20/20, Echocardiogram Testing, and
Blood Sugar Testing.

10. Donations

Donations received are intended for the following purposes:

2022 2021
General fund £79,826,294 P138,827,491
Medical assistance 568,658 31,075

P80,394,952  P138,858,566

Donations received by the Foundation were from various corporations and individuals.




11.

Program Expenses

Project cost for various projects are as follows:

2022 2021
Restricted:

Operations Bayanihan $4,143,804 £6,332,237
Kapuso School Rehabilitation 13,924,871 7,191,918
18,068,675 13,524,155

Unrestricted:
Give a Gift 30,694,730 18,100,624
Operation Bayanihan 27,107,224 29,807,549
Unang Hakbang Sa Kinabukasan 13,354,456 13,018,169
Kapuso School Rehabilitation 6,439,575 19,306,363
Sagip Dugtong Buhay 525,584 209,116
Kalusugan Karavan 507,145 14,891
Bisig Bayan 357,417 438,628
Linis Lusog Kapusong Kabataan 38,170 -
79,024,301 80,895,340

£97,092,976 294,419,495

Salaries and wages amounting to 4,211,932 and £4,473,051 in 2022 and 2021, respectively, pertain
to salaries of project-related employees.

Donation expense amounting to 575,883 and 346,855 in 2022 and 2021, respectively, were used for
expenses incurred in providing medical assistance to specific indigent patients identified by the
donors requiring extensive medical treatment.

12. Compensation and Employee Benefits
2022 2021
Salaries and wages $5,539,166 $£6,085,537
Pension benefit (Note 13) (973,395 (528,673)
P£4,565,771 P5,556,864
13. Pension Liability

The Foundation has a funded, non-contributory retirement plan covering its permanent employees.
In 2022 and 2021, the Foundation contributed to a retirement fund managed by a trustee bank.

Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay
to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided
however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require minimum
funding of the plan.

Under PFRS for SMEs, the cost of defined benefit obligations, including those mandated under
Republic Act 7641 should be determined using an accrued benefit valuation method or projected
benefit valuation method to be determined by an independent actuary.
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The following tables summarize the components of retirement costs recognized in the statements of

receipts and expenses and pension liability recognized in the statements of assets, liabilities and fund
balance as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Pension costs (benefit) recognized in statements of receipts and expenses are as follows:

2022 2021

Current service cost P642,721 P612,115

Interest cost 238,941 197,740
Net actuarial gain (1,855,057) (1,338,528)
(P973,395) (P528,673)

Details of net pension liability are as follows:

2022 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligations £3,597,559 £4,535,426
Fair value of plan assets (2,950,193) (2,274,151)

Pension liability P647,366 £2,261,275

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year P4,535,426 £5,044,375
Current service cost 642,721 612,115
Interest cost 238,941 197,740
Net actuarial gain (1,819,529) (1,318,804)
Balance at end of year £3,597,559 P4,535,426

The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year £2,274,151 £1,613,913
Contribution 640,514 640,514
Actuarial gain 35,528 19,724
Balance at end of year £2,950,193 £2,274,151

The Foundation’s plan assets as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 consist of time deposits.

At each reporting period, the Foundation determines its contribution based on the performance of its
retirement fund.

The funds are managed and supervised by Trustee banks for the benefits of the plan members.
However, the general administration of the funds is vested in a Retirement Committee.

The latest actuarial valuation report obtained is at December 31, 2020.

The principal assumptions used in determining pension liability of the Foundation’s retirement plan
are as follows:

2022 2021
Discount rate 7.47% 5.27%
Expected rate of salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

y



Shown below is the maturity analysis of the Foundation for December 31, 2022:

Less than one year P
More than one year to five years 1,423,889
More than 5 years to 10 years 3,310,863
More than 10 years to 15 years 2,075,327
More than 15 years to 20 years 2,614,179
More than 20 years 3,358,662

P£12,782,920

14. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. This includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the Foundation; (b)
associates; and (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the
Foundation that gives them significant influence over the Foundation and close members of the
family of any such individual. In considering each related party relationship, attention is directed to
the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The Foundation, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties. The table
below summarizes the amount of transactions entered into with related parties and the outstanding
balances as at December 31.

Amount of Outstanding

Related Party Category Year Transactions Balance Terms Conditions
GMA Network, Inc. (GMA)  Due to a related party 2022 £1,082,167 £2,038,381 On demand,
2021 (22,405,336) £956,214 noninterest-bearing Unsccured
Donations receipts 2022 193,031 —
2021 3,920,192 -
Trustees Donations receipts 2022 62,135 -
2021 1,114,080 -

Due to a related party pertains to the expenses initially paid by GMA on behalf of the Foundation.

Donation receipts pertains to donations received from related parties which form part of their general
fund that is used to finance any program, including medical assistance of the Foundation.

15. Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

The Foundation reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in 2022:

a. Taxes and Licenses

Mayor’s permit 213,600
DSWD registration and accreditation fee 1,000
Barangay certificate renewal 2,300
Community tax certificate 500
Registration fees 500

217,900
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b. Withholding Taxes

Expanded withholding taxes £604,034
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits 134,084
P738,118

c. Tax Assessments and Cases

As at December 31, 2022, the Foundation has no final tax assessments and cases pending before
the BIR. Likewise, the Foundation has no other pending tax cases outside the administration of
the BIR as at December 31, 2022.
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Kapuso Foundation Staff

ADMINISTRATION UNIT
Sheldon Cesar L. Perdigon
Ria S. Herida

Sheilana Rosary N. Ward
Joanna G. Logronio
Philomel A. Oroceo
Rainiere C. Reyes

Senior Finance Staff
Junior Finance Staff
Senior Admin Staff
Senior Admin Staff
Warehouse Staff
Warehouse Staff

MARKETING AND PROJECTS SUPPORT UNIT

PROJECTS UNIT

Maria Cristina G. Dungca
Ma. Cristina O. Betonio
Ma. Rose Ann L. Cordero
Maricel A. Tarrayo

Aron Paul P. Calma
Amabelle D. Rusiana
Stephanie Marie F. Pefa
Nelfa Grace B. Tejada

Senior Projects Staff
Senior Projects Staff
Senior Projects Staff
Senior Projects Staff
Junior Projects Staff
Junior Projects Staff
Junior Projects Staff
Junior Projects Staff

MARKETING AND PROJECTS SUPPORT UNIT

Loida Tracy G. Cruz

Martin N. Morales
Angela A. Festejos

Programs Development

Assistant Manager
Marketing Staff
Marketing Staff

MEDIA PRODUCTION SUPPORT UNIT

Leonila O. Defuntorum

Danilo A. Fausto

Marienel N. Fuertes

Calista Allyson B. Geronimo
Bettina Mirelle L. Tan

Media Production
Support Supervisor
Senior MPS Staff
Senior MPS Staff

KAPUSO SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT UNIT

KAPUSO SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT UNIT

Engr. Baltazar Babas
Engr. Edgar D. Eniego
Engr. Arnel V. Zantua
Fiderly S. Ventura
Honesto M. Reyes Jr.

Segment Producer for 24 Oras
Segment Producer for 24 Oras

Engineering Consultant
Engineering Consultant
Supervising Engineer
Logistics In-Charge
Logistics On-Site



L-R: 1st ROW Carmela C. Tiangco, Rikki E. Catibog 2nd ROW Leonila O. Defuntorum, Nelfa Grace B. Tejada, Ma. Rose Ann L. Cordero,
Joanna G. Logronio, Ria S. Herida, Angela A. Festejos 3rd ROW Marienel N. Fuertes, Calista Allyson B. Geronimo, Bettina Mirelle L. Tan,
Amabelle D. Rusiana, Maricel A. Tarrayo, Sheilana Rosary N. Ward, Ma. Cristina O. Betonio, Stephanie Marie F. Pena 4th ROW Rainiere C. Reyes,
Maria Cristina G. Dungca, Loida Tracy G. Cruz, Sheldon Cesar L. Perdigon 5th ROW Philomel A. Oroceo, Aron Paul P. Calma, Martin N. Morales,
Danilo A. Fausto, Arnel V. Zantua, Engr. Baltazar Babas, Edgar D. Eniego, Honesto M. Reyes Jr., Fiderly S. Ventura
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PHILUSA CORPORATION-RHEA GENERICS

PHILUSA Corporation-RHEA Generics donated medicine and hygiene
products for GMA Kapuso Foundation’s various projects.

L 5 us TOOLS PHILIPPINES

TOP DONORS

2 s 1
PLANET WATER FOUNDATION

Planet Water Foundation installed AquaTower multi-functional water
tanks in Liloan and Limasawa Island in Southern Leyte under the Kapuso
School Development project for 2 schools which were badly damaged
by Super Typhoon Odette.

FEDERATION OF FILIPINO CHINESE CHAMBERS
OF COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY, INC.

N A
CONCRETE STONE CORP.

Concrete Stone Corp. led by its President, Engr. Noel Jesus Santiago, provided top
quality aggregates & shipping service of construction materials for the Kapuso
School Development projects in Limasawa Island, Liloan in Southern Leyte &
Siargao Island in Surigao del Norte.

P -
NEW ZEALAND EMBASSY MANILA

Lotus Tools Philippines donated construction tools for the infrastructure
projects of GMA Kapuso Foundation.

NEW WORLD DIAGNOSTICS

New World Diagnostics provides laboratory services
to patients under GMA Kapuso Foundation’s care.

The Federation of Filipino Chinese Chambers of Commerce & Industry,
Inc. (FFCCCII) through the Filipino Chinese Community Calamity Fund do-
nated to GMA Kapuso Foundation’s Operation Bayanihan for the survivors
of Super Typhoon Odette. FFCCCII president Dr. Henry Lim Bon Liong led
the donation turnover which was received by GMA Kapuso Foundation’s
EVP & COO, Ms. Rikki Escudero-Catibog.

GMA Kapuso Foundation EVP & COO Ms. Rikki Escudero-Catibog, accepts a
grant from the New Zealand Embassy led by Ambassador Peter Kell for the
construction of 4 classrooms in Siargao, Surigao del Norte in aid of Super
Typhoon Odette victims.

SINGAPORE DIAGNOSTICS

Singapore Diagnostics provides antigen tests to GMA Kapuso Foundation
staffers and beneficiaries as needed.




TOP MONETARY DONORS

Century Peak Cement Manufacturing Corporation

Apex Mining Co., Inc.

Globe Telecom, Inc.

Federation of Filipino Chinese Chambers of Commerce
and Industry, Inc.

Anonymous

New Zealand Embassy Manila

GMA Network, Inc.

Shopee Philippines, Inc.

Applied Medical Europe B.V.

Grace Cabato

Dr. and Mrs. Marius Garcia

Eagle Cement Corp.

HC Consumer Finance Philippines, Inc.

Cemex Philippines Foundation, Inc.

Television International Corporation

Edo, Inc.

G-Xchange, Inc.

Advanced Information Solutions and Concepts (AISC), Inc.

JC Premier Business International, Inc.

Stephen L. Co and Family

Austrian Embassy Manila

North Texas Association of Philippine Physicians

Aaronzach Realty, Inc.

Divina Law Offices

Enri Rodriguez

CMA Meat, Inc.

Ida M. Reyes

Megaworld Foundation, Inc.

PCAPI - R4A Chapter, Inc.

Sumitomo Metal Mining Philippine Holdings Corp.

Unisun Development Co., Inc.
Wilson Square Devcon, Inc.
Reynolfo Abad
SyngergyGroup Operations, Inc.

Global Comfort Group Corporation
Queen E Enterprises

Orland Repato

Accumed Diagnostic Center

Adrian Calimbas

Ancon Properties

Asuncion E. Aquino

Beautederm Corporation

Blue 717 Realty, Inc.

Goodream Printers Corporation

JJED Philippines, Inc.

Ma. Teresita Certeza

Makati City Prosecutors Association, Inc.
Maria Soledad Tiqui

Pea Tollway Corp and Cavitex Infrastructure Corp.

Philippine College of Poultry Practitioners
Foundation, Inc.

Quadro Corporation

Reysal Shoprite, Inc.

Seedworks Philippines, Inc.

Synergos Multipurpose Cooperative
Transco Ladies Foundation, Inc.

Ravenal Santos, Jr.

ROHM LSI Design Philippines, Inc.
Glorious Seventh Day Adventist Church
Philippine Mission
Nathaniel Albert Yu

Native Instinc&LC&' ‘
Ma. Judy Carlos =z 2 .
Del Rosario Raboca Gonzales Grasparil
Lizelle Maralag .
Jeanette Qua
Felipe L. Gozon
Brgy. San Nicolas
Infor Manila CSR
Phil. Association of Service Exporters, Inc.
Lieza Layug
Victor Lachica
999 Food Source, Inc.
AVR International Resources, Inc.
Bank Security Management Association, Inc.
Concepcion Defuntorum
Jet Petroleum, Inc.
Management and Staff of Sumitomo Metal Mining
Philippine Holdings Corp.
Nissen Philippines, Inc.
Philippine Airlines (Pal) Foundation, Inc.
Pollution Control Association

of the Philippines, Inc. (PCAPI)
Readycon Trading & Construction Corporation
Traffic Supplies and Construction Corporation
Trucem, Inc.
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TOP MATERIAL DONORS

Planet Water Foundation

ADP Pharma Corporation

NIVEA

Concrete Stone Corp.

Lotus Tools Philippines

UNILAB

Monde Nissin

Johnson & Johnson (Philippines), Inc.
Colgate-Palmolive Philippines
International Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

B. Braun Medical Supplies, Inc.

A. Tung Chingco Manufacturing Corp.
Pascual Laboraties, Inc.

Peerless Products Manufacturing Corporation
PHILUSA Corporation-RHEA Generics
RainPhil, Inc.

Universal Robina Corporation
Accesspoint International Trading, Inc.
CEMEX Philippines Foundation

Ever Bilena Cosmetics, Inc.

Hotel Sogo

New Marketlink Pharmaceutical Corporation
F2N Marketing

WalterMart

Ronald McDonald House Charities of the Philippines, Inc.

PPG Coatings (Philippines), Inc.
Ambica International Corporation
Manila Water Foundation

Clean Nest Co.

Regicon Healthcare, Inc.

Del Monte Foundation, Inc.
Clearbridge Medical Philippines, Inc.
LABx Asia Corporation

Purefoods or San Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc.

Jollibee Group of Companies

Vitarich Corporation

MOHS Analytics

CDO Foodsphere, Inc.

Health Rich Pharma Corp.

Mega Global Corporation

Frontrow Cares

iNova Pharmaceuticals

Adamson Medtex International Corporation
Allied Hospital Supply International Corporation
Equator Energy Corporation

Pierre Curran Marketing, Inc.

Blued Clothing

Asia-Pacific Eye Center

Crystal Clear, Inc.

Venice 66 Fashions, Inc. (VANS Philippines)
Quanta Paper Corporation

SDW Premium Korean BBQ, Inc.

SL Agritech Corporation

American Standard Philippines

Mariwasa Siam Ceramics, Inc.

RycorTech Corporation

Pinakamasarap Corporation

Liwanag Candles

Marta's Handmade Soaps

Gardenia Bakeries Philippines, Inc.

CLC Marketing Ventures Corp.

General Nutrifoods Philippines, Inc.
Topline All Best General Enterprise Incorporated
Procter and Gamble Philippines, Inc.
Punongbayan & Araullo

MRL Cybertec Corporation

Mang Inasal

Europlay Distributor Co., Inc.
DCGS Enterprise

Nature's Spring

Goldshine Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Asia Brewery, Inc.

Maxiplex International Phils. Corp.
Philippine Airlines Foundation
BTL Corporation

Walter Apparel

Lamoiyan Corporation

EMS Group of Companies
Frankie's New York Buffalo Wings
Green Grace Success, Inc.

TOP SERVICE DONORS

Singapore Diagnostics

Fast Cat

New World Diagnostics

Alphastar Laboratory and Multispecialty Clinic
Philippine Airlines Foundation

Clearbridge Medical Philippines

El Roi Molecular Diagnostic Laboratory

2GO Travel

Meridian Shipping and Container Carrier, Inc.
Solid Shipping Lines Corporation

Mayon Clinical Laboratory & Medical Services
Wellpoint Medical Clinic and Diagnostic Center
Moreta Shipping Lines

Premiere Medical and Cardiovascular Laboratory, Inc.
Seaborne Shipping Lines

Alcheon Medical Corporation



TOP VOLUNTEER ORGANIZATIONS

PRIVATE COMPANIES

JPMorgan Chase & Co.
BPI Corporate Banking - Relationship Management Group (TC3)

PHILIPPINE COAST GUARD

Philippine Coast Guard - Western Visayas
Philippine Coast Guard - Real
Philippine Coast Guard - Polilio

AFP PARTNERS

Joint Task Force - National Capital Region (JTF-NCR)

Civil Relations Service, Armed Forces of the Philippines (CRSAFP)

AFP Engineer Brigades and Battalions

Office of the Chief of Staff - General Headquarters, Armed Forces of the
Philippines (OCSAFP)

PHILIPPINE ARMY

Office of the Assistant Chief of Staff for Civil Military Operations, G7
Civil Military Operations Regiment (CMOR)
1302nd Community Defense Center

NORTHERN LUZON COMMAND, AFP

5th Infantry Division, Philippine Army / Joint Task Force Tala — Gamu, Isabela
7th Infantry Division, Philippine Army - Palayan City, Nueva Ecija

501st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

502nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

77th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

17th Infantry Battalion Philippine Army

93rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

54th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

91st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
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70th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

24th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

69th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

Tactical Operations Wing Northern Luzon
Tactical Operations Group 2, Philippine Air Force

SOUTHERN LUZON COMMAND, AFP

2nd Infantry Division, Philippine Army - Tanay, Rizal

9th Infantry Division, Philippine Amry - Pili, Camarines Sur
902nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

903rd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

202nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

1st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

80th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

85th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

4th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

83rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

31st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

22nd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

564th Engineer Construction Battalion, Philippine Army
2nd Civil Military Operations Battalion, Philippine Army
9th Civil Military Operations Battalion, Philippine Army
564th Engineer Construction Battalion, Philippine Army
Philippine Navy BRP Federico Martir (LC385)

VISAYAS COMMAND, AFP

3rd Infantry Division, Philippine Army — Roxas City, Capiz
8th Infantry Division, Philippine Army - Catbalogan, Samar
302nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Amy

303rd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

801st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

802nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army



GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

53rd Engineer Brigade, Philippine Army

15th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

11th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

14th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

82nd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

93rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

19th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

87th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

46th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

78th Infantry Batallion, Philippine Army

94th infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

47th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

78th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

62nd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

Joint Task Group - Cebu

546th Engineer Construction Battalion, Philippine Army

3rd Civil Military Operations Battalion, Philippine Army

14th Civil Military Operations Battalion, CMOR, Philippine Army

Marine Battalion Landing Team - 9, Philippine Marine Corps

Marine Amphibious Ready Unit (MARU) Philippine Marine Corps

702nd Ready Reserve Infantry Battalion, ARESCOM, Philippine Army

702nd Community Defense Center, RESCOM, Philippine Army

7th Regional Community Defense Group, RESCOM, Philippine Army

Buenavista Community College ROTC Unit, Army Reserve Command

82nd Division Reconnaissance Company (82DRC)

Service Support Battalion, 8th Infantry Division, Philippine Army

8th Regional Community Defense Group, Reserve Command,
Philippine Army

EASTERN MINDANAO COMMAND, AFP

10th infantry Division, Philippine Army - Mawab, Davao De Oro

4th Infantry Division, Philippine Army - Cagayan De Oro City,
Misamis Oriental

901ST Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

1002nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

701st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army

48th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

66th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

73rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

16th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

16th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

90th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

75th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

36th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

60th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

65th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

26th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

29th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

67th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

30th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

8th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

1505th Ready Reserve Infantry Battalion, RESCOM, Philippine Army
1502nd Ready Reserve Infantry Battalion, RESCOM, Philippine Army

WESTERN MINDANAO COMMAND, AFP

11th Infantry Division, Philippine Army - Jolo, Sulu /Joint Task Force Sulu
1st Infantry Division, Philippine Army - Labangan, Zamboanga del Sur

6th Infantry Division, Philippine Army - Cotabato City, Maguindanao Del Norte

101st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army/Joint Task Force Basilan
2nd Marine Brigade, Philippine Marine Corps/Joint Task Force Tawi-Tawi
54th Engineer Brigade, Philippine Army

55th Engineer Brigade, Philippine Army

Naval Forces Western Mindanao

Joint Task Force Zamboanga

Philippine Navy BRP Bagobo (LC 293)

Philippine Navy BRP Florencio lihigo (PC393)

Philippine Navy 1st Boat Attack Division, BA 487 (MPAC)
Marine Battalion Landing Team 1, Philippine Marine Corps
Marine Battalion Landing Team 7, Philippine Marine Corps
Marine Battalion Landing Team 8, Philippine Marine Corps
Marine Battalion Landing Team 12, Philippine Marine Corps

5th Mechanized Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

1st Civil Military Operations Battalion, Philippine Army






MA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
106

NNUAL REPORT 2022

6th Civil Military Operations Battalion, Philippine Army
15th Civil Military Operations Battalion, Philippine Army
2nd Special Forces Battalion, Philippine Army
6th Special Forces Battalion, Philippine Army
4th Special Forces Battalion, Philippine Army
5th Special Forces Battalion, Philippine Army
6th Special Forces Battalion, Philippine Army
4th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

74th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
32nd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
100th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
45th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

41st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

18th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

78th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

18th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

69th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

24th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
62nd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
55th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

34th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army

38th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
549th Engineer Battalion, Philippine Army

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL POLICE

PNP Buguias
PNP Panukulan, Quezon
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— How to —
Donate

The GMA Kapuso Foundation (GMAKF) Office receives monetary and material
donations from Monday to Friday, 9:00am until 5:00pm.

For monetary donations, the Foundation accepts cash or check
which can be personally delivered to the GMAKF Office or
deposited in its bank accounts. An official receipt is issued for
donors who bring their cash donation to the GMAKF Office.

For bank deposits, the donor is requested to fax or e-mail a bank
transaction slip indicating intended recipient (if any) and
contact details for sending of official receipt.

Donations from the U.S., Europe and other countries can be
wire-transferred to the GMA Kapuso Foundation accounts
indicating the “swift code” of the Philippine banks in the
next page. The donor is requested to fax or e-mail a bank
transaction slip indicating the intended recipient (if any) and
contact details for the sending of official receipts.

GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

2nd Floor GMA Kapuso Center

GMA Network Drive cor. Samar Street
Diliman, Quezon City 1103

Philippines

Registration No.: DSWD-SB-R-000034-2021
License No.: DSWD-SB-L-000040-2021
Accreditation No.: DSWD-SB-A-000124-2021

Solicitation Permit No.. DSWD-SB-SP-00038-2022
Email: gmaf@gmanetwork.com



Service fees are waived in the following banks for all over the counter
donations to the GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY (METROBANK)

Peso Savings

Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Numbers :098-3-098-51034-7

Dollar Savings

Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number :098-2-098-00244-2

Swift Code : MBTC PH MM

BANCO DE ORO (BDO)

Peso Savings

Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number :00-469-0232-116

:00-469-0022-189
Dollar Savings

Account Number : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number :10-469-0072135
Swift Code :BNORPHMM

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK (PNB)

Peso Savings

Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number :1263-1000-8797

Dollar Savings

Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc
Account Number : 1263-6000-8804

Swift Code : PNB MPH MM

UNIONBANK OF THE PHILIPPINES

Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number :000-4-000-22679

Code : UBPHPHMM

BANK OF COMMERCE

Peso Savings

Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number :051-20015869-9

Code : PABIPHMM

Dollar Savings

Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number :512-1003583-8

Code : PABIPHMM

All published images of minors were taken with consent.

LAND BANK OF THE PHILIPPINES

Peso Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Numbers :4812-1108-91

:4781-0138-33

Dollar Savings

Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Numbers :4814-0105-33

:4784-0106-22
Swift Code : TLBPPHMMXXX

Donations are also accepted free of service charge at all branches of CEBUANA LHUILLIER in the Philippines.
Credit card donations may also be done online but applicable service fees will be charged.

GMAKEF also accepts material donations such as rice, canned goods, noodles, food items, medicines, hygiene
supplies, new clothes and new footwear.

The Foundation only accepts material donations (ex. canned goods, food items and medicine) that are expiring
beyond 6 months from date of acceptance. A material receipt form will be issued to the donor upon delivery of
material donation.

For material donations from abroad, door-to-door delivery is preferred. Please indicate the address and name
of donor on the box. A material receiving form will be issued to you through mail or e-mail.

Thank you very much!

You may also donate through any of our partners below:

DONATIONS ARE ACCEPTED AT G,) GCG S h

SCAN TO DONATE

CEBUANA

ALL BRANCHES NATIONWIDE

Account Name: GMA Kapuso Foundation

Nesa & Lozoda Yap! LazadaFerGood TO—

OPERATION BAYANIHAN DISASTER RELIEF AID SCAN TO DONATE
IN PARTNERSHIP WITH GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
VIA FLATADAFORGOOD




KAPUSO TULAY

MAGALLANES ELEMENTARY SCHOOL






